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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

When included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or in other documents that Investar Holding Corporation (the “Company”) files with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or in statements made by or on behalf of the Company, words like “may,” “should,” “could,”
“predict,” “potential,” “believe,” “think,” “will l ikely result,” “expect,” “continue,” “will,” “anticipate,” “seek,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“projection,” “would,” “outlook” and similar expressions or the negative version of those words are intended to identify forward-looking 
statements as defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements involve a variety of risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described therein. The Company’s forward-looking statements are 
based on assumptions and estimates that management believes to be reasonable in light of the information available at the time such statements 
are made. However, many of the matters addressed by these statements are inherently uncertain and could be affected by many factors beyond 
management’s control. Factors that could have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and future 
growth prospects can be found in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 that the Company filed 
with the SEC on March 31, 2015 and Part II, Item 1A. – Risk Factors, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Additional risk factors may also 
be described in reports that the Company files from time to time with the SEC.  

Because forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified, you 
should not rely on any forward-looking statement as a prediction of future events. We expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to update 
our forward-looking statements, and we do not intend to release publicly any updates or changes in our expectations concerning the forward-
looking statements or any changes in events, conditions or circumstances upon which any forward-looking statement may be based, except as 
required by law.  
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

   

INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     
   (Unaudited)                 
ASSETS                      

Cash and due from banks  $ 6,879      $ 5,519    
Interest-bearing balances due from other banks     13,617         13,493    
Federal funds sold     170         500    

Cash and cash equivalents     20,666         19,512    
                     
Available for sale securities at fair value (amortized cost  
   of $75,736 and $69,838, respectively)     76,617         70,299    
Held to maturity securities at amortized cost (estimated  
   fair value of $22,321 and $22,301, respectively)     22,369         22,519    
Loans held for sale     64,313         103,396    
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $5,379 and  
   $4,630, respectively     641,060         618,160    
Other equity securities     1,839         5,566    
Bank premises and equipment, net of accumulated  
   depreciation of $4,310 and $3,964, respectively     29,136         28,538    
Other real estate owned, net     2,568         2,735    
Accrued interest receivable     2,316         2,435    
Deferred tax asset     2,260         2,906    
Goodwill and other intangibles     3,206         3,216    
Other assets     1,730         1,882    

Total assets  $ 868,080      $ 881,164    

                    
LIABILITIES                    

Deposits:                    
Noninterest-bearing  $ 84,402      $ 70,217    
Interest-bearing     614,490         557,901    

Total deposits     698,892         628,118    
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank     34,865         125,785    
Repurchase agreements     12,878         12,293    
Note payable     3,609         3,609    
Accrued taxes and other liabilities     12,449         7,975    

Total liabilities     762,693         777,780    
                    

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                    
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value per share; 5,000,000  
   shares authorized     -         -    
Common stock, $1.00 par value per share; 40,000,000  
   shares authorized; 7,268,488 and 7,262,085 shares  
   issued and outstanding, respectively     7,271         7,264    
Treasury stock     (25 )       (23 )  
Surplus     84,283         84,213    
Retained earnings     13,705         11,809    
Accumulated other comprehensive income     153         121    

Total stockholders' equity     105,387         103,384    
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 868,080      $ 881,164    

                        
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.     



   
INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)  

(Unaudited)  
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   Three months ended     
   March 31,     
   2015        2014     

                        
INTEREST INCOME                       

Interest and fees on loans  $ 8,298      $ 6,675    
Interest on investment securities     485         272    
Other interest income     17         10    

Total interest income     8,800         6,957    
                     

                     
INTEREST EXPENSE                    

Interest on deposits     1,192         1,003    
Interest on borrowings     109         87    

Total interest expense     1,301         1,090    
Net interest income     7,499         5,867    

                     
Provision for loan losses     700         245    

Net interest income after provision for loan losses     6,799         5,622    
                     
                     
NONINTEREST INCOME                    

Service charges on deposit accounts     94         63    
Gain on sale of investment securities, net     -         116    
Loss on sale of real estate owned, net     (1 )       (3 )  
Gain on sale of loans, net     1,731         624    
Fee income on loans held for sale, net     300         76    
Other operating income     416         190    

Total noninterest income     2,540         1,066    
Income before noninterest expense     9,339         6,688    

                     
                     
NONINTEREST EXPENSE                    

Depreciation and amortization     357         303    
Salaries and employee benefits     3,908         3,471    
Occupancy     213         224    
Data processing     340         278    
Marketing     58         76    
Professional fees     262         59    
Other operating expenses     1,286         974    

Total noninterest expense     6,424         5,385    
Income before income tax expense     2,915         1,303    

Income tax expense     965         424    
Net income  $ 1,950      $ 879    

                     
                     
EARNINGS PER SHARE                    

Basic earnings per share  $ 0.27      $ 0.23    
Diluted earnings per share  $ 0.27      $ 0.21    
Cash dividends declared per common share  $ 0.01      $ 0.01    

                       
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.     



   
INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)  

(Unaudited)  
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   Three months ended     
   March 31,     
   2015        2014     

                        
Net income  $ 1,950      $ 879    
Other comprehensive income:                    

Unrealized gains on investment securities:                    
Reclassification of realized gains, net of tax expense (benefit) of $0 and $(39), respectively     -         (77 ) 
Unrealized gains, available for sale, net of tax expense of  
     $143 and $104, respectively     278         202    
Unrealized (loss) gains, transfer from available for sale to  
     held to maturity, net of tax expense of $0 and $10,  
     respectively     (1 )      19    

Fair value of derivative financial instruments:                    
Change in fair value of interest rate swap designated as a  
     cash flow hedge, net of tax (benefit) expense of $(126) and $0,  
     respectively     (245 )      -    

Total other comprehensive income     32         144    
Total comprehensive income  $ 1,982      $ 1,023    

                        
                        

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.     



   
INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY  
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)  
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                                                   Accumulated                 
                                                   Other        Total     
   Common        Treasury                    Retained        Comprehensive       Stockholders'     

   Stock        Stock        Surplus        Earnings        Income (Loss)        Equity     

Balance, December 31, 2013  $ 3,943      $ -      $ 45,281      $ 6,609      $ (350 )    $ 55,483    
Common stock issued in offering, net  
   of direct cost of $4,266     3,285         -         38,443         -         -         41,728    
Warrants exercised     22         -         275         -         -         297    
Surrendered shares     -         (17 )       -         -         -         (17 )  
Shares repurchased               (6 )                                     (6 )  
Dividends declared, $0.04 per share     -         -         -         (197 )       -         (197 )  
Stock-based compensation     14         -         214         -         -         228    
Net income     -         -         -         5,397         -         5,397    
Other comprehensive income, net     -         -         -         -         471         471    
Balance, December 31, 2014  $ 7,264      $ (23 )    $ 84,213      $ 11,809      $ 121      $ 103,384    
Surrendered shares               (2 )                                     (2 )  
Dividends declared, $0.01 per share     -         -         -         (54 )       -         (54 )  
Stock-based compensation     7         -         70         -         -         77    
Net income     -         -         -         1,950         -         1,950    
Other comprehensive income, net     -         -         -         -         32         32    
Balance, March 31, 2015 (Unaudited)  $ 7,271      $ (25 )    $ 84,283      $ 13,705      $ 153      $ 105,387    
                                                                        
                                                                        

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.     



   
INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)  

(Unaudited)  
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      For the three months ended     
      March 31,     
      2015        2014     
Cash flows from operating activities:                          

Net income    $ 1,950      $ 879    
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:                      
Depreciation and amortization       357         303    
Amortization (accretion) of premium (discount) on securities, net       251         235    
Amortization of purchase accounting adjustments       (70 )       (101 )  
Provision for loan losses       700         245    
Provision for other real estate owned        12          10    
Gain on sale of securities       -         (116 )  
Loss on sale of other real estate owned       1         3    
FHLB stock dividend       (3 )       (2 )  
Stock-based compensation       77         41    
Other       11         -    

Loans held for sale:                      
Originations       (102,886 )       (36,401 )  
Proceeds from sales       143,699         16,722    
Gain on sale of loans       (1,731 )       (624 )  

Net change in:                      
Accrued interest receivable       119         67    
Deferred tax asset       646         (22 )  
Other assets       152         421    
Accrued taxes and other liabilities       4,082         436    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities       47,367         (17,904 )  
                       
Cash flows from investing activities:                      

Purchases of investment securities available for sale       (8,616 )       (19,437 )  
Proceeds from paydowns, redemptions and maturities of securities available for sale       2,462         12,499    
Proceeds from paydowns, redemptions and maturities of securities held to maturity       143         14    
Proceeds from sale of loans       -         23,482    
Proceeds from redemptions of other equity securities       5,356         348    
Purchases of other equity securities       (1,625 )       (430 )  
Net increase in loans       (23,819 )       (47,684 )  
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned       417         88    
Purchases of premises, equipment and software       (945 )       (1,889 )  

Net cash used in investing activities       (26,627 )       (33,009 )  
                       
Cash flows from financing activities:                      

Net increase in customer deposits       70,800         31,635    
Net increase in repurchase agreements       585         2,577    
Net (decrease) increase in short-term FHLB advances       (90,639 )       3,830    
Proceeds from long-term FHLB advances       500         -    
Repayment of long-term FHLB advances       (781 )       (430 )  
Cash dividends paid on common stock       (51 )       (48 )  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities       (19,586 )       37,564    
                       
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents       1,154         (13,349 )  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period       19,512         28,203    
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period    $ 20,666      $ 14,854    

      
      

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.     



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Basis of Presentation  

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Investar Holding Corporation (the “Company”) have been prepared in 
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include information or footnotes necessary for a complete presentation of 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with GAAP. However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments 
(consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the financial statements have been included. The results of 
operations for the three month period ended March 31, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire fiscal 
year. These statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, including the notes thereto, which were included as part of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2015.  

Nature of Operations  

Investar Holding Corporation, headquartered in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, provides full banking services, excluding trust services, through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Investar Bank (the “Bank”), a Louisiana-chartered bank. The Company’s primary market is South Louisiana. 
The Company currently operates 11 full service banking offices located throughout its market and had 177 employees at March 31, 2015.  

Principles of Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank. All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differences could be 
material. Material estimates that are susceptible to a significant change in the near term are the allowance for loan losses, the fair value of financial 
instruments and the determination of other-than-temporary impairments of securities.  

Reclassifications  

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2014 financial statements to be consistent with the 2015 presentation.  

Concentrations of Credit Risk  

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of the various types of loans described in Note 4, Loans. Real estate or other assets secure most loans. 
The majority of loans has been made to individuals and businesses in the Company’s market of South Louisiana. Customers are dependent on 
the condition of the local economy for their livelihoods and servicing their loan obligations. The Company does not have any significant 
concentrations in any one industry or individual customer.  

   
Recent Accounting Pronouncements  
   

FASB ASC Topic 835-30 “Interest-Imputation of Interest” Update No. 2015-03. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) 
issued Update No. 2015-03 in April 2015 as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in the accounting standards. To simplify presentation of 
debt issuance costs, the amendments in this Update require that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the 
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and 
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this Update. For public entities, the amendments in this 
Update are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal 
years. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position.  
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INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

FASB ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” Update No. 2015-02.   The FASB issued Update No. 2015-02 in February 2015 to respond to 
stakeholders’ concerns about the current accounting for consolidation of certain legal entities. The amendments in the update change the analysis 
that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of legal entities and are effective for public entities 
for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015.  The adoption of this standard is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position.  

FASB ASC Topic 225-20 “Income Statement – Extraordinary and Unusual Items” Update No. 2015-01. The FASB issued Update No. 2015-01 
in January 2015 as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. This update eliminates from GAAP the concept of 
extraordinary items. The amendments in the update are effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2015.  Early adoption is 
permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position.  

   
NOTE 2. EARNINGS PER SHARE  

The following is a summary of the information used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the three months 
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands, except share data):  
   

   
   

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES  

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities classified as available for sale are summarized as follows as of the dates 
presented (dollars in thousands):  
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   Three months ended March 31,     
   2015        2014     
         
Net income available to common shareholders  $ 1,950      $ 879    
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding  
   used in computation of basic earnings per common share     7,219,235          3,901,064    
Effect of dilutive securities:                       

Restricted stock     12,738          44,049    
Stock options     9,961          22,810    
Stock warrants     8,921          193,498    

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding  
   plus effect of dilutive securities used in computation  
   of diluted earnings per common share     7,250,855          4,161,421    
Basic earnings per share  $ 0.27       $ 0.23    
Diluted earnings per share  $ 0.27       $ 0.21    

                  Gross        Gross                 
      Amortized        Unrealized        Unrealized        Fair     
March 31, 2015     Cost        Gains        Losses        Value     

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and corporations     $ 6,868      $ 50      $ (22 )   $ 6,896    
Mortgage-backed securities        48,461          699         (27 )      49,133    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        11,759          220         (40 )      11,939    
Corporate bonds        7,841          47         (54 )      7,834    
Equity securities        807          24         (16 )      815    

Total     $ 75,736       $ 1,040       $ (159 )    $ 76,617    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   

   
The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities classified as held to maturity are summarized as follows as of the dates 
presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

   
The Company had no securities classified as trading as of March 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.  

The aggregate fair values and aggregate unrealized losses on securities whose fair values are below book values are summarized in the tables 
below. Due to the nature of the investment and current market prices, these unrealized losses are considered a temporary impairment of the 
securities.  

The following table presents, by type and number of securities, the age of gross unrealized losses and approximate fair value by investment 
category for securities available for sale as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):  
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                  Gross        Gross                 
      Amortized        Unrealized        Unrealized        Fair     
December 31, 2014     Cost        Gains        Losses        Value     

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and corporations     $ 4,351      $ 31      $ (22 )   $ 4,360    
Mortgage-backed securities        47,903          365         (22 )      48,246    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        11,616          181         (57 )      11,740    
Corporate bonds        5,416          23         (20 )      5,419    
Equity securities        552          -         (18 )      534    

Total     $ 69,838       $ 600       $ (139 )    $ 70,299    

                  Gross        Gross                 
      Amortized        Unrealized        Unrealized        Fair     
March 31, 2015     Cost        Gains        Losses        Value     

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and corporations     $ 3,981       $ -      $ (30 )   $ 3,951    
Mortgage-backed securities        3,416          14          (32 )       3,398    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        14,972          -         -         14,972    

Total     $ 22,369       $ 14       $ (62 )    $ 22,321    

                  Gross        Gross                 
      Amortized        Unrealized        Unrealized        Fair     
December 31, 2014     Cost        Gains        Losses        Value     

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and corporations     $ 3,979       $ -      $ (165 )   $ 3,814    
Mortgage-backed securities        3,469          5          (58 )       3,416    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        15,071          -         -         15,071    

Total     $ 22,519       $ 5       $ (223 )    $ 22,301    

                  Less than 12 Months        12 Months or More        Total     
                              Unrealized                   Unrealized                   Unrealized    
March 31, 2015     Count        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses     

Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations        6      $ 2,067      $ (15 )    $ 474      $ (7 )    $ 2,541      $ (22 )  
Mortgage-backed securities        13         4,344         (20 )       597         (7 )       4,941         (27 )  
Obligations of state and political  
     subdivisions        13         2,459         (13 )       1,111         (27 )       3,570         (40 )  
Corporate bonds        7         2,738         (37 )       1,232         (17 )       3,970         (54 )  
Equity securities        2         47         (2 )       493         (14 )       540         (16 )  

Total        41      $ 11,655      $ (87 )    $ 3,907      $ (72 )    $ 15,562      $ (159 )  



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   

   
The following table presents, by type and number of securities, the age of gross unrealized losses and approximate fair value by investment 
category for securities held to maturity as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

   
The unrealized losses in the Company’s investment portfolio, caused by interest rate increases, are not credit issues, and the Company does not 
intend to sell the securities and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their 
amortized cost bases. The Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2015 or December 31, 
2014.  

The weighted average tax equivalent yield, amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities, by contractual maturity 
(including mortgage-backed securities), are shown below as of the dates presented. Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties (dollars in thousands).  
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                  Less than 12 Months        12 Months or More        Total     
                              Unrealized                   Unrealized                   Unrealized    
December 31, 2014     Count        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses     

Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations        5      $ 1,770      $ (10 )    $ 469      $ (12 )    $ 2,239      $ (22 )  
Mortgage-backed securities        10         1,339         (1 )       2,150         (21 )       3,489         (22 )  
Obligations of state and political  
     subdivisions        15         813         (6 )       3,021         (51 )       3,834         (57 )  
Corporate bonds        6         1,782         (18 )       547         (2 )       2,329         (20 )  
Equity securities        1         488         (18 )       -         -         488         (18 )  

Total        37      $ 6,192      $ (53 )    $ 6,187      $ (86 )    $ 12,379      $ (139 )  

                  Less than 12 Months        12 Months or More        Total     
                              Unrealized                   Unrealized                   Unrealized    
March 31, 2015     Count        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses     

Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations        2      $ 1,972      $ (19 )    $ 1,979      $ (11 )    $ 3,951      $ (30 )  
Mortgage-backed securities        3         -         -         2,325         (32 )       2,325         (32 )  

Total        5      $ 1,972      $ (19 )    $ 4,304      $ (43 )    $ 6,276      $ (62 )  

                  Less than 12 Months        12 Months or More        Total     
                              Unrealized                   Unrealized                   Unrealized    
December 31, 2014     Count        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses        Fair Value       Losses     

Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations        2      $ -      $ -      $ 3,814      $ (165 )    $ 3,814      $ (165 )  
Mortgage-backed securities        3         -         -         2,343         (58 )       2,343         (58 )  

Total        5      $ -      $ -      $ 6,157      $ (223 )    $ 6,157      $ (223 )  

      Securities Available for Sale        Securities Held to Maturity     
      Weighted                               Weighted                             
      Average T.E.        Amortized       Fair        Average T.E.        Amortized        Fair     
March 31, 2015     Yield        Cost        Value        Yield        Cost        Value     

Due within one year       -    %  $ -      $ -         7.07    %  $ 620      $ 620    
Due after one year through five years       2.07         3,808         3,850         7.07         2,815         2,815    
Due after five years through ten years       2.37         22,709         22,899         7.07         4,365         4,365    
Due after ten years       2.35         48,412         49,053         3.30         14,569         14,521    

Total debt securities                 74,929         75,802                   22,369         22,321    
Equity securities       1.98         807         815         -         -         -    

Total               $ 75,736      $ 76,617                $ 22,369      $ 22,321    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   

   
   

The Company invested $0.5 million in an equity mutual fund known as the Community Reinvestment Act Qualified Investment Fund (ticker 
CRAIX) on May 11, 2012. The mutual fund is composed of taxable municipal bonds, money market funds, small business administration pools, 
corporate bonds, single family agency mortgage-backed securities, and multifamily agency mortgage-backed securities. This investment was 
made in accordance with the Company’s Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) action plan in order to receive CRA credit. The approximate 
fair value of the investment in the fund was $0.5 million at March 31, 2015 with a loss of approximately $14,000, and the fair market value was 
approximately $0.5 million at December 31, 2014 with a loss of approximately $18,000.  

Other equity securities at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 include Federal Home Loan Bank and First National Bankers Bankshares, Inc. 
stock. This stock is considered restricted stock as only banks that are members of the organization may acquire or redeem shares of such stock. 
The stock is redeemable at its face value; therefore, there are no gross unrealized gains or losses associated with this investment.  

   
NOTE 4. LOANS  

The Company’s loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale, consists of the following categories of loans as of the dates presented (dollars in 
thousands):  
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      Securities Available for Sale        Securities Held to Maturity     
      Weighted                               Weighted                             
      Average T.E.        Amortized       Fair        Average T.E.        Amortized        Fair     
December 31, 2014     Yield        Cost        Value        Yield        Cost        Value     

Due within one year       1.21    %  $ 100      $ 100         7.07    %  $ 620      $ 620    
Due after one year through five years       1.66          1,871         1,868         7.07          2,815         2,815    
Due after five years through ten years       2.48          17,324         17,433         7.07          4,365         4,365    
Due after ten years       2.33          49,991         50,364         3.31          14,719         14,501    

Total debt securities                  69,286         69,765                    22,519         22,301    
Equity securities       2.07          552         534         -          -         -    

Total                $ 69,838      $ 70,299                 $ 22,519      $ 22,301    

   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Construction and development  $ 73,971      $ 71,350    
1-4 Family     139,787         137,519    
Multifamily     19,219         17,458    
Farmland     3,270         2,919    
Commercial real estate     237,608         225,058    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     473,855         454,304    
Commercial and industrial     58,803         54,187    
Consumer     113,781         114,299    

Total loans  $ 646,439      $ 622,790    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   
The following table provides an analysis of the aging of loans as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

   
On October 1, 2011, the Bank acquired South Louisiana Business Bank (“SLBB”), a full service commercial bank headquartered in Prairieville, 
Louisiana. On May 1, 2013, the Bank acquired First Community Bank (“FCB”), a full service commercial bank headquartered in Hammond, 
Louisiana.  

Total loans at March 31, 2015 include approximately $42.8 million of loans acquired in the FCB and SLBB acquisitions that were recorded at 
fair value as of their respective acquisition dates. Included in the acquired loan balances at March 31, 2015 were approximately $0.6 million in 
loans 30-59 days past due and $1.0 million in nonaccrual loans. There were no acquired loans 60-89 or 90 or more days past due at March 31, 
2015.  

Total loans at December 31, 2014 include approximately $45.0 million of loans acquired in the FCB and SLBB acquisitions that were recorded 
at fair value as of their respective acquisition dates. Included in the acquired loan balances at December 31, 2014 were approximately $0.3 
million in loans 30-59 days past due, $14,000 in loans 60-89 days past due, and $1.1 million in nonaccrual loans. There were no acquired loans 
90 or more days past due at December 31, 2014.  
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   March 31, 2015    
   Past Due and Accruing                                            
                                           Total Past                        
                       90 or more                Due &                        

   30-59 days      
60-

89 days      days      Nonaccrual     Nonaccrual     Current      Total Loans    

Construction and development  $ 396     $ -     $ -     $ 1,387     $ 1,783     $ 72,188     $ 73,971   
1-4 Family     118        -        -        414        532        139,255        139,787   
Multifamily     -        -        -        -        -        19,219        19,219   
Farmland     -        -        -        -        -        3,270        3,270   
Commercial real estate     -        -        -        746        746        236,862        237,608   

Total mortgage loans on real estate     514        -        -        2,547        3,061        470,794        473,855   
Commercial and industrial     44        -        -        119        163        58,640        58,803   
Consumer     281        46        -        349        676        113,105        113,781   

Total loans  $ 839     $ 46     $ -     $ 3,015     $ 3,900     $ 642,539     $ 646,439   

   December 31, 2014    
   Past Due and Accruing                                            
                                           Total Past                        
                       90 or more                Due &                        

   30-59 days      
60-

89 days      days      Nonaccrual     Nonaccrual     Current      Total Loans    

Construction and development  $ 106     $ 14     $ -     $ 1,363     $ 1,483     $ 69,867     $ 71,350   
1-4 Family     179        -        -        837        1,016        136,503        137,519   
Multifamily     -        -        -        -        -        17,458        17,458   
Farmland     -        -        -        -        -        2,919        2,919   
Commercial real estate     -        -        -        749        749        224,309        225,058   

Total mortgage loans on real estate     285        14        -        2,949        3,248        451,056        454,304   
Commercial and industrial     2        -        -        178        180        54,007        54,187   
Consumer     239        47        -        213        499        113,800        114,299   

Total loans  $ 526     $ 61     $ -     $ 3,340     $ 3,927     $ 618,863     $ 622,790   



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

Credit Quality Indicators  

Loans are categorized into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt, such as current 
financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other 
factors. The following definitions are utilized for risk ratings, which are consistent with the definitions used in supervisory guidance:  

Pass – Loans not meeting the criteria below are considered pass. These loans have the highest credit characteristics and financial strength. 
Borrowers possess characteristics that are highly profitable, with low to negligible leverage and demonstrate significant net worth and liquidity.  

Special Mention – Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management’s close attention. If left 
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the Company’s credit position at 
some future date.  

Substandard – Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the 
collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are 
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.  

Doubtful – Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added characteristic that the 
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and 
improbable.  

Loss – Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as recorded assets is not warranted. 
This classification does not mean that the assets have absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer 
writing off these assets.  

The following table presents a breakdown of the Company’s loan portfolio by credit quality indicators as of the dates presented (dollars in 
thousands):  
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   March 31, 2015     
               Special                             
   Pass        Mention        Substandard        Total     

Construction and development  $ 72,460      $ 16      $ 1,495      $ 73,971    
1-4 Family     137,945         723         1,119         139,787    
Multifamily     18,153         -         1,066         19,219    
Farmland     3,270         -         -         3,270    
Commercial real estate     236,746         -         862         237,608    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     468,574         739         4,542         473,855    
Commercial and industrial     58,684         -         119         58,803    
Consumer     113,051         337         393         113,781    

Total loans  $ 640,309      $ 1,076      $ 5,054      $ 646,439    

   December 31, 2014     
               Special                             
   Pass        Mention        Substandard        Total     

Construction and development  $ 69,361      $ 340      $ 1,649      $ 71,350    
1-4 Family     135,898         -         1,621         137,519    
Multifamily     16,403         -         1,055         17,458    
Farmland     2,919         -         -         2,919    
Commercial real estate     224,192         -         866         225,058    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     448,773         340         5,191         454,304    
Commercial and industrial     54,007         -         180         54,187    
Consumer     113,832         208         259         114,299    

Total loans  $ 616,612      $ 548      $ 5,630      $ 622,790    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   
The Company had no loans that were classified as doubtful or loss as of March 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.  

Loan participations and whole loans sold to and serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The 
unpaid principal balances of these loans were approximately $285.9 million and $189.6 million as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively.  

In the ordinary course of business, the Company makes loans to its executive officers, principal stockholders, directors and to companies in 
which these individuals are principal owners. Loans outstanding to such borrowers (including companies in which they are principal owners) 
amounted to approximately $24.9 million and $22.8 million as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. These loans are all 
current and performing according to the original terms. These loans were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and 
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with persons not related to the Company or the Bank and did not involve 
more than normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features.  

The aggregate amount of loans to such related parties is as follows as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The Company elected to account for certain loans acquired in the FCB acquisition as acquired impaired loans under FASB ASC 310-30, Loans 
and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 310-30”), due to evidence of credit deterioration at acquisition and the 
probability that the Company will be unable to collect all contractually required payments.  

The following table presents the fair value of loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality as of the date of the FCB acquisition (dollars in 
thousands):  
   

   
Total loans acquired in the FCB acquisition included $72.6 million of performing loans not accounted for under ASC 310-30.  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Balance, beginning of period  $ 22,750      $ 11,781    
New loans     3,494         15,277    
Repayments     (1,383 )      (4,308 ) 
Balance, end of period  $ 24,861      $ 22,750    

   May 1, 2013     

Contractually required principal and interest  $ 7,470    
Nonaccretable difference     (2,102 ) 
Cash flows expected to be collected     5,368    
Accretable yield     (468 ) 
Fair value of loans at acquisition  $ 4,900    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

The following table presents changes in the carrying value, net of allowance for loan losses, of the acquired impaired loans for the periods 
presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

    
Accretable yield on acquired impaired loans at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is as follows (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
   

   
NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses is as follows as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):  
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   Acquired     
   Impaired     

Carrying value, net at December 31, 2013  $ 4,032   
Accretion to interest income     161   
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable difference to (from) accretable yield     316   
Payments received, net     (1,044 ) 
Charge-offs     (59 ) 
Transfers to real estate owned     (628 ) 
Carrying value, net at December 31, 2014  $ 2,778   
Accretion to interest income     34   
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable difference to (from) accretable yield     50   
Payments received, net     (61 ) 
Charge-offs     (61 ) 
Transfers to real estate owned     (45 ) 
Carrying value, net at March 31, 2015  $ 2,695   

   Acquired     
   Impaired     

Balance, period ended December 31, 2013  $ 270    
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable difference to (from) accretable yield     316    
Accretion     (161 ) 
Balance, period ended December 31, 2014  $ 425    
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable difference to (from) accretable yield     50    
Accretion     (34 ) 
Balance, period ended March 31, 2015  $ 441    

   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Balance, beginning of period  $ 4,630      $ 3,380    
Provision for loan losses     700         1,628    
Loans charged off     (142 )      (459 ) 
Recoveries     191         81    
Balance, end of period  $ 5,379      $ 4,630    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
The following tables outline the changes in the allowance for loan losses by collateral type, the allowances for loans individually and collectively 
evaluated for impairment, and the amount of loans individually and collectively evaluated for impairment as of and for the three months ended 
March 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
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   March 31, 2015     
   Construction &                                    Commercial     Commercial &                          

   Development       Farmland     1----4   Family      Multifamily     Real Estate      Industrial       Consumer       Total     

Allowance for loan losses:                                                                        
Beginning balance  $ 526     $ 18     $ 909     $ 137     $ 1,571     $ 390     $ 1,079        4,630   
Charge-offs     (5 )      -        -        -        -        (56 )      (81 )      (142 ) 
Recoveries     1        -        3        -        -        180        7        191   
Provision     116        5        112        27        387        (105 )      158        700   
Ending balance  $ 638     $ 23     $ 1,024     $ 164     $ 1,958     $ 409     $ 1,163     $ 5,379   

Ending allowance balance for loans  
      individually evaluated for  
      impairment     -        -        -        -        -        -        104        104   
Ending allowance balance for loans  
     collectively evaluated for  
     impairment  $ 638     $ 23     $ 1,024     $ 164     $ 1,958     $ 409     $ 1,059     $ 5,275   
Ending allowance balance for loans  
     acquired with deteriorated credit  
     quality  $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -   
                                                                         
Loans receivable:                                                                        
Balance of loans individually  
     evaluated for impairment  $ 1,511     $ -     $ 1,842     $ 1,066     $ 862     $ 119     $ 730     $ 6,130   
Balance of loans collectively  
     evaluated for impairment     72,460        3,270        137,945        18,153        236,746        58,684        113,051        640,309   
Total period-end balance  $ 73,971     $ 3,270     $ 139,787     $ 19,219     $ 237,608     $ 58,803     $ 113,781     $ 646,439   
                                                                         
Balance of loans acquired with  
     deteriorated credit quality  $ 753     $ -     $ 833     $ 1,065     $ -     $ -     $ 44     $ 2,695   



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
   

   

Impaired Loans  

The Company considers a loan to be impaired when, based on current information and events, the Company determines that it will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the loan agreement, including scheduled interest payments. Generally, those loans rated substandard or 
special mention are evaluated for impairment each quarter. Determination of impairment is treated the same across all classes of loans. When the 
Company identifies a loan as impaired, it measures the impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the 
loan’s effective interest rate, except when the sole (remaining) source of repayment for the loans is the operation or liquidation of the collateral. 
In these cases when foreclosure is probable, the Company uses the current fair value of the collateral, less selling costs, instead of discounted 
cash flows. If the Company determines that the value of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (net of previous 
charge-offs, deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount), the Company recognizes impairment through an allowance 
estimate or a charge-off to the allowance for loan losses.  

When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual, all payments are applied to 
principal, under the cost recovery method. When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt and the loan 
is on nonaccrual, contractual interest is credited to interest income when received, under the cash basis method.  
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   December 31, 2014     
   Construction &                                    Commercial      Commercial &                          

   Development      Farmland     1----4   Family      Multifamily     Real Estate       Industrial       Consumer       Total     

Allowance for loan losses:                                                                        
Beginning balance  $ 420     $ 4     $ 567     $ 101     $ 992     $ 397     $ 899        3,380   
Charge-offs     -        -        (123 )      -        (3 )      (16 )      (317 )      (459 ) 
Recoveries     1        -        4        -        1        17        58        81   
Provision     105        14        461        36        581        (8 )      439        1,628   
Ending balance  $ 526     $ 18     $ 909     $ 137     $ 1,571     $ 390     $ 1,079     $ 4,630   

Ending allowance balance for loans  
      individually evaluated for  
      impairment     -        -        -        -        -        -        70        70   
Ending allowance balance for loans  
     collectively evaluated for  
     impairment  $ 526     $ 18     $ 909     $ 137     $ 1,571     $ 390     $ 1,009     $ 4,560   
Ending allowance balance for loans  
     acquired with deteriorated credit  
     quality  $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -     $ -   
                                                                         
Loans receivable:                                                                        
Balance of loans individually  
     evaluated for impairment  $ 1,989     $ -     $ 1,621     $ 1,055     $ 866     $ 180     $ 467     $ 6,178   
Balance of loans collectively  
     evaluated for impairment     69,361        2,919        135,898        16,403        224,192        54,007        113,832        616,612   
Total period-end balance  $ 71,350     $ 2,919     $ 137,519     $ 17,458     $ 225,058     $ 54,187     $ 114,299     $ 622,790   
                                                                         
Balance of loans acquired with  
     deteriorated credit quality  $ 820     $ -     $ 858     $ 1,054     $ -     $ -     $ 46     $ 2,778   



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

The following tables include the recorded investment and unpaid principal balances for impaired loans with the associated allowance amount, if 
applicable, as of the dates indicated. The Company determined the specific allowance based on the present values of expected future cash flows, 
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, except when the remaining source of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the 
collateral. In those cases, the current fair value of the collateral, less estimated selling cost, was used to determine the specific allowance 
recorded (dollars in thousands).  
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   March 31, 2015     
               Unpaid                 
   Recorded        Principal        Related     
   Investment        Balance        Allowance     

With no related allowance recorded:                              
Construction and development  $ 1,594      $ 1,593      $ -    
1-4 Family     1,307         1,302         -    
Multifamily     -         -         -    
Commercial real estate     746         746         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,647         3,641         -    
Commercial and industrial     120         120         -    
Consumer     82         82         -    

Total     3,849         3,843         -    
                               
With related allowance recorded:                              
Consumer     311         311         104    
Total     311         311         104    
                               
Total loans:                              
Construction and development     1,594         1,593         -    
1-4 Family     1,307         1,302         -    
Multifamily     -         -         -    
Commercial real estate     746         746         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,647         3,641         -    
Commercial and industrial     120         120         -    
Consumer     393         393         104    

Total  $ 4,160      $ 4,154      $ 104    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
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   December 31, 2014     
               Unpaid                 
   Recorded        Principal        Related     
   Investment        Balance        Allowance     

With no related allowance recorded:                              
Construction and development  $ 1,543      $ 1,543      $ -    
1-4 Family     837         837         -    
Multifamily     -         -         -    
Commercial real estate     749         749         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,129         3,129         -    
Commercial and industrial     179         179         -    
Consumer     79         79         -    

Total     3,387         3,387         -    
                               
With related allowance recorded:                              
Consumer     180         180         70    
Total     180         180         70    
                               
Total loans:                              
Construction and development     1,543         1,543         -    
1-4 Family     837         837         -    
Multifamily     -         -         -    
Commercial real estate     749         749         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,129         3,129         -    
Commercial and industrial     179         179         -    
Consumer     260         259         70    

Total  $ 3,568      $ 3,567      $ 70    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
Presented in the tables below is the average recorded investment of the impaired loans and the related amount of interest recognized during the 
time within the period that the impaired loans were impaired. The average balances are calculated based on the month-end balances of the loans 
during the period reported (dollars in thousands).  
   

   

22  

   For the three months ended March 31, 2015     
   Average        Interest     
   Recorded        Income     
   Investment        Recognized     

With no related allowance recorded:                    
Construction and development  $ 1,902      $ 4    
1-4 Family     1,292         14    
Multifamily     -         -    
Commercial real estate     765         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,959         18    
Commercial and industrial     194         1    
Consumer     135         1    

Total     4,288         20    
                     
With related allowance recorded:                    
Consumer     243         -    
Total     243         -    
                     
Total loans:                    
Construction and development     1,902         4    
1-4 Family     1,292         14    
Multifamily     -         -    
Commercial real estate     765         -    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,959         18    
Commercial and industrial     194         1    
Consumer     378         1    

Total  $ 4,531      $ 20    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

   

Troubled Debt Restructurings  

In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial difficulties, the Company grants a concession for other than 
an insignificant period of time to the borrower that the Company would not otherwise consider, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt 
restructuring (“TDR”). The Company strives to identify borrowers in financial difficulty early and work with them to modify their loans to more 
affordable terms before such loans reach nonaccrual status. These modified terms may include rate reductions, principal forgiveness, payment 
forbearance and other actions intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of the collateral. In cases where 
the Company grants the borrower new terms that provide for a reduction of either interest or principal, the Company measures any impairment 
on the restructuring as previously noted for impaired loans.  

Loans classified as TDRs, consisting of ten credits, totaled approximately $1.5 million at March 31, 2015 compared to seven credits totaling 
approximately $0.6 million at December 31, 2014. Nine of the ten TDRs were acquired from FCB. Nine of the ten credits were considered TDRs 
due to modification of terms through adjustments to maturity and one was considered a TDR due to modification of terms through principal 
payment forbearance, paying interest only for a specified period of time. Nine of the ten credits are currently performing in accordance with their 
modified terms. The remaining TDR was in default of its modified terms as of the date these financial statements were issued and is included in 
nonaccrual loans. The Company individually evaluates each TDR for allowance purposes, primarily based on collateral value, and excludes 
these loans from the loan population that is evaluated by applying qualitative factors.  
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   For the three months ended March 31, 2014     
   Average        Interest     
   Recorded        Income     
   Investment        Recognized     

With no related allowance recorded:                    
Construction and development  $ 1,471      $ 8    
1-4 Family     1,463         18    
Multifamily     994         18    
Commercial real estate     251         4    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     4,179         48    
Commercial and industrial     172         -    
Consumer     37         -    

Total     4,388         48    
                     
With related allowance recorded:                    
Consumer     180         -    
Total     180         -    
                     
Total loans:                    
Construction and development     1,471         8    
1-4 Family     1,463         18    
Multifamily     994         18    
Commercial real estate     251         4    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     4,179         48    
Commercial and industrial     172         -    
Consumer     217         -    

Total  $ 4,568      $ 48    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   
The following table presents the TDR pre- and post-modification outstanding recorded investments by loan categories as of the dates presented 
(dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The following is a summary of accruing and nonaccrual TDRs and the related loan losses by portfolio type as of the dates presented (dollars in 
thousands):  
   

   
The following table includes the average recorded investment and interest income recognized for TDRs for the three months ended March 31, 
2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
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     March 31, 2015      March 31, 2014    
          Pre-      Post-           Pre-      Post-    
          Modification     Modification          Modification     Modification   
          Outstanding     Outstanding          Outstanding     Outstanding   

     
Number   

of    Recorded      Recorded      
Number   

of    Recorded      Recorded    
Troubled debt restructurings    Contracts    Investment      Investment      Contracts    Investment      Investment    

Construction and development    5    $ 207     $ 207     2    $ 457     $ 457   
1-4 Family    3       1,257        1,257     1       358        358   
Commercial and industrial    1       1        1     1       3        3   
Consumer    1       44        44     -       -        -   

Total         $ 1,509     $ 1,509          $ 818     $ 818   

   TDRs     
                                                
                                       Related     
   Accruing        Nonaccrual        Total        Allowance     

March 31, 2015                                        
Construction and development  $ 207      $ -      $ 207      $ -    
1-4 Family     893         364         1,257         -    
Commercial and industrial     1         -         1         -    
Consumer     44         -         44         -    

Total  $ 1,145      $ 364      $ 1,509      $ -    
                                         
March 31, 2014                                        
Construction and development  $ 457      $ -      $ 457      $ -    
1-4 Family     358         -         358         -    
Commercial and industrial     3         -         3         -    

Total  $ 818      $ -      $ 818      $ -    
                                            

   TDRs     

   
Average Recorded 

Investment        
Interest Income 

Recognized     

March 31, 2015                    
Construction and development  $ 209      $ 4    
1-4 Family     1,257         11    
Commercial and industrial     1         -    
Consumer     44         1    

Total  $ 1,511      $ 16    

                     
March 31, 2014                    
Construction and development  $ 459      $ 7    
1-4 Family     359         8    
Commercial and industrial     3         -    

Total  $ 821      $ 15    



INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
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(Unaudited)  
   
NOTE 6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

The Company currently holds forward starting interest rate swap contracts to manage exposure against the variability in the expected future cash 
flows (future interest payments) attributable to changes in the 1-month LIBOR associated with the forecasted issuances of 1-month fixed rate 
debt arising from a rollover strategy. An interest rate swap is an agreement whereby one party agrees to pay a fixed rate of interest on a notional 
principal amount in exchange for receiving a floating rate of interest on the same notional amount, for a predetermined period of time, from a 
second party. The amounts relating to the notional principal amount are not actually exchanged. The maximum length of time over which the 
Company is currently hedging its exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions is five years. The total notional 
amount of the derivative contracts is $20.0 million.  

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, a loss of $0.2 million has been recognized in other comprehensive income in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the change in fair value of the interest rate swap. The swap contract had a negative fair 
value of $0.7 million as of March 31, 2015 and has been recorded in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The loss 
of $0.4 million included in accumulated other comprehensive income would be reclassified to current earnings if the hedge transactions become 
probable of not occurring. The Company expects the hedges to remain fully effective during the remaining term of the swap contracts.  

   
NOTE 7. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure (“ASC 820”), disclosure of fair value information about 
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, is required. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under 
current market conditions. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, 
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the 
assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows, and the fair value estimates may not be realized in an 
immediate settlement of the instruments. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the 
Company.  

If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of 
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at 
the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances and requires use of significant judgment. The fair 
value is a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.  

Fair Value Hierarchy  

In accordance with ASC 820, the Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the 
markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.  

Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access 
at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. 
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.  

Level 2 – Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly. The valuation may be based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  

Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of 
the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted 
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which determination of fair value requires significant management 
judgment or estimation.  

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement.  
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The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value disclosures for financial instruments:  

Cash and Due from Banks – For these short-term instruments, fair value is the carrying value. Cash and due from banks is classified in level 1 of 
the fair value hierarchy.  

Federal Funds Sold – The fair value is the carrying value. The Company classifies these assets in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Investment Securities and Other Equity Securities – Where quoted prices are available in an active market, the Company classifies the securities 
within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Securities are defined as both long and short positions. Level 1 securities include highly liquid 
government bonds and exchange-traded equities.  

If quoted market prices are not available, the Company estimates fair values using pricing models and discounted cash flows that consider 
standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, and credit spreads. 
Examples of such instruments, which would generally be classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy, include Government Sponsored 
Enterprise obligations, corporate bonds and other securities. Mortgage-backed securities are included in level 2 if observable inputs are available. 
In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation, the Company classifies those securities in level 
3. Equity securities are valued based on market quoted prices and are classified in level 1 as they are actively traded.  

Loans – For variable-rate loans that re-price frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values. 
Fair values for certain mortgage loans (for example, one-to-four family residential), credit card loans, and other consumer loans are based on 
quoted market prices of similar instruments sold in conjunction with securitization transactions, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. 
Fair values for other loans (for example, commercial real estate and investment property mortgage loans, commercial and industrial loans) are 
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using market interest rates for comparable loans. Fair values for nonperforming loans, which are 
loans for which the accrual of interest has stopped or loans that are contractually 90 past due on which interest continues to accrue, are estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable. The Company classifies loans in level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy.  

Loans held for sale are measured using quoted market prices when available. If quoted market prices are not available, comparable market values 
or discounted cash flow analyses may be utilized. The Company classifies these assets in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Other Real Estate Owned – The fair values are estimated based on recent appraisal values of the property less estimated costs to sell the 
property, as real estate owned is valued at the lower of cost or fair value of the property, less estimated costs to sell. Certain inputs used in 
appraisals are not always observable, and therefore real estate owned may be classified in level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. When inputs are 
observable, these assets are classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Accrued Interest – The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value and are classified in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Deposit Liabilities – The fair values disclosed for noninterest-bearing demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on 
demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). These noninterest-bearing deposits are classified in level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy. The carrying amounts of variable-rate (for example interest-bearing checking, savings, and money market accounts), fixed-term 
money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of 
deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies market interest rates on comparable instruments to a schedule of 
aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. All interest-bearing deposits are classified in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Short-Term Borrowings – The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased, borrowings under repurchase agreements, and other short-term 
borrowings maturing within 90 days approximate their fair values.  The Company classifies these borrowings in level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy.  

Long-Term Borrowings – The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flows analyses based on the Company’s 
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is therefore 
classified in level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.  

Commitments – The fair value of commitments to extend credit was not significant.  
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Derivative Instruments – The fair value for interest rate swap agreements are based upon the amounts required to settle the contracts. These 
derivative instruments are classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Recurring Basis  

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

Fair Value of Assets Measured on a Nonrecurring Basis  

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are summarized below; there were no liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis at March 
31, 2015 or December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
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                  Quoted Prices in                    Significant     
                  Active Markets for       Significant Other        Unobservable     
      Estimated        Identical Assets        Observable Inputs       Inputs     

     Fair Value        (Level 1)       (Level 2)       (Level 3)     

March 31, 2015                                           
Assets:                                           

Mortgage-backed securities     $ 49,133      $ -      $ 49,133      $ -    
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies        6,896         -         6,896         -    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        11,939         -         11,939         -    
Corporate bonds        7,834         -         7,834              
Equity securities        815         815         -         -    

Total assets     $ 76,617      $ 815      $ 75,802      $ -    

Liabilities:                                           
Derivative financial instruments     $ 674      $ -      $ 674      $ -    

                                            
December 31, 2014                                           
Assets:                                           

Mortgage-backed securities     $ 48,246      $ -      $ 48,246      $ -    
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies        4,360         -         4,360         -    
Obligations of state and political subdivisions        11,740         -         11,740         -    
Corporate bonds        5,419         -         5,419              
Equity securities        534         534         -         -    

Total assets     $ 70,299      $ 534      $ 69,765      $ -    

Liabilities:                                           
Derivative financial instruments     $ 303      $ -      $ 303      $ -    

                 Quoted Prices in                  Significant     
                 Active Markets for      Significant Other       Unobservable     
      Estimated       Identical Assets       Observable Inputs      Inputs     

     Fair Value       (Level 1)       (Level 2)       (Level 3)     

March 31, 2015                                                
Loans held for sale     $ 64,313       $ -       $ -       $ 64,313    
Impaired loans        4,050          -          -          4,050    
Other real estate owned        2,568          -          -          2,568    

Total     $ 70,931       $ -       $ -       $ 70,931    

                                               
December 31, 2014                                                
Loans held for sale     $ 103,396       $ -       $ -       $ 103,396    
Impaired loans        3,497          -          -          3,497    
Other real estate owned        2,735          -          -          2,735    

Total     $ 109,628       $ -       $ -       $ 109,628    
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows (dollars in 
thousands):  
   

   

   
   
NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES  

The expense for income taxes and the effective tax rate included in the consolidated statements of operations is as follows for the periods 
presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The effective tax rates differ from the statutory tax rate of 35% largely due to tax exempt interest income earned on certain investment securities. 
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   March 31, 2015     
   Carrying        Estimated                                         
   Amount        Fair Value        Level 1        Level 2        Level 3     

Financial assets:                                                           
Cash and due from banks  $ 20,496       $ 20,496       $ 20,496       $ -       $ -    
Federal funds sold     170          170          170          -          -    
Investment securities     98,986          98,938          815          98,123          -    
Other equity securities     1,839          1,839          -          1,839          -    
Loans, net of allowance     705,373          709,690          -          -          709,690    
Accrued interest receivable     2,316          2,316          2,316          -          -    
                                                            
Financial liabilities:                                                           
Deposits, noninterest-bearing  $ 84,402       $ 84,402       $ -      $ 84,402      $ -    
Deposits, interest-bearing     614,490          618,989          -          -          618,989    
FHLB short-term advances and repurchase agreements     27,428          27,428          -          27,428          -    
FHLB long-term advances     20,315          20,416          -          -          20,416    
Other long-term borrowed funds     3,609          3,608          -          -          3,608    
Accrued interest payable     310          310          310          -          -    
Derivative financial instruments     674          674          -          674          -    

   December 31, 2014     
   Carrying        Estimated                                         
   Amount        Fair Value        Level 1        Level 2        Level 3     

Financial assets:                                                           
Cash and due from banks  $ 19,012       $ 19,012       $ 19,012       $ -       $ -    
Federal funds sold     500          500          500          -          -    
Investment securities     92,818          92,600          534          92,066          -    
Other equity securities     5,566          5,566          -          5,566          -    
Loans, net of allowance     721,556          722,675          -          -          722,675    
Accrued interest receivable     2,435          2,435          2,435          -          -    
                                                            
Financial liabilities:                                                           
Deposits, noninterest-bearing  $ 70,217       $ 70,217       $ -      $ 70,217      $ -    
Deposits, interest-bearing     557,901          560,667          -          -          560,667    
FHLB short-term advances and repurchase agreements     116,632          116,632          -          116,632          -    
FHLB long-term advances     21,446          21,493          -          -          21,493    
Other long-term borrowed funds     3,609          3,608          -          -          3,608    
Accrued interest payable     284          284          284          -          -    
Derivative financial instruments     303          303          -          303          -    

   Three months ended March 31,     
   2015       2014     
Income tax expense  $ 965       $ 424    
Effective tax rate     33.1 %       32.5 % 
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NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk entered into in the normal course of business to meet the financing 
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, which are not included in the accompanying financial 
statements.  

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend money with fixed expiration dates or termination clauses. The Company applies the same 
credit standards used in the lending process when extending these commitments, and periodically reassesses the customer’s creditworthiness 
through ongoing credit reviews. Since some commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do 
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Collateral is obtained based on the Company’s assessment of the transaction. Essentially all 
letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company’s commitments to extend 
credit totaled approximately $121.8 million and $91.5 million, respectively.  

The Company is required to maintain average reserves at the Federal Reserve Bank. There were approximately $10.5 million and $12.9 million 
in required reserves at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.  
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

This section presents management’s perspective on the financial condition and results of operations of Investar Holding Corporation (the 
“Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us”) and its wholly-own ed subsidiary, Investar Bank (the “Bank”). The following discussion and analysis should 
be read in conjunction with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included herein, and the audited 
consolidated financial statements and notes and the related Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of 
Operations in the Annual Report on Form 10-K that the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 31, 
2015.  

Overview  

Our principal business is lending to and accepting deposits from individuals and small to medium-sized businesses. We generate our income 
principally from interest on loans and, to a lesser extent, our securities investments, as well as from fees charged in connection with our various 
loan and deposit services and gains on the sale of loans and securities. Our principal expenses are interest expense on interest-bearing customer 
deposits and borrowings, salaries, employee benefits, occupancy costs, data processing and other operating expenses. We measure our 
performance through our net interest margin, return on average assets, and return on average equity, among other metrics, while maintaining 
appropriate regulatory leverage and risk-based capital ratios.  

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition  

Loans  

General . Loans, excluding loans held for sale, constitute our most significant asset, comprising 74.5% and 70.7% of our total assets at March 
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Loans, excluding loans held for sale, increased $23.6 million, or 3.8%, to $646.4 million at 
March 31, 2015 from $622.8 million at December 31, 2014 as a result of organic loan growth in our markets. The table below sets forth the 
balance of loans, excluding loans held for sale, outstanding by loan type as of the dates presented, and the percentage of each loan type to total 
loans (dollars in thousands):  
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   March 31, 2015           December 31, 2014        

   Amount        
Percentage of  
Total Loans           Amount        

Percentage of  
Total Loans        

Construction and development  $ 73,971          11.5    %    $ 71,350          11.4    % 
1-4 Family     139,787          21.6             137,519          22.1       
Multifamily     19,219          3.0             17,458          2.8       
Farmland     3,270          0.5             2,919          0.5       
Commercial real estate                                                 

Owner occupied     124,208          19.2             119,668          19.2       
Nonowner occupied     113,400          17.5             105,390          16.9       

Total mortgage loans on real estate     473,855          73.3             454,304          72.9       
Commercial and industrial     58,803          9.1             54,187          8.7       
Consumer     113,781          17.6             114,299          18.4       

Total loans  $ 646,439          100.0    %    $ 622,790          100.0    % 



   
   
The following table sets forth loans outstanding at March 31, 2015, which, based on remaining scheduled repayments of principal, are due in the 
periods indicated. Loans with balloon payments and longer amortizations are often repriced and extended beyond the initial maturity when credit 
conditions remain satisfactory. Demand loans, loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity, and overdrafts are reported 
below as due in one year or less.  
   

   
Loans Held for Sale . Loans held for sale decreased $39.1 million, or 37.8%, to $64.3 million at March 31, 2015 from $103.4 million at 
December 31, 2014. The decrease is primarily due to $99.7 million of consumer loans being classified as held for sale at December 31, 2014. 
Two consumer loan sales were postponed by the buyer from the fourth quarter of 2014 to the first quarter of 2015, therefore increasing the 
balance of consumer loans held for sale at December 31, 2014. In the first three months of 2015, we originated $17.0 million and $85.9 million 
in mortgage loans and consumer loans for sale, respectively, as compared to $16.9 million and $19.5 million in mortgage loans and consumer 
loans for sale, respectively, originated in the first three months of 2014.  

One-to-four family mortgage loans not held in our portfolio are typically sold on a “best efforts” basis within 30 days after the loan is funded. 
This means that residential real estate originations are locked in at a contractual rate with a third party investor or directly with government 
sponsored agencies, and we are obligated to sell the mortgage only if it is closed and funded. As a result, the risk we assume is conditioned upon 
loan underwriting and market conditions in the national mortgage market. Although loan fees and some interest income are derived from 
mortgage loans held for sale, our largest source of income is gains from the sale of these loans in the secondary market, which is recorded in gain 
on sale of loans, net on the consolidated statements of operations. For the three months ended March 31, 2015, we recognized gains from the 
sales of mortgage loans of $0.5 million compared to $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014.  

The Company now sells, and plans to continue to sell, the majority of the consumer loans that it originates. We sell pools of our consumer loans 
in order to manage our concentration in consumer loans as well as to generate liquidity. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we 
recognized gains from the sales of consumer loans of $1.2 million compared to $0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, which 
is recorded in gain on sale of loans, net on the consolidated statements of operations.  

Loan Concentrations . Loan concentrations are considered to exist when there are amounts loaned to multiple borrowers engaged in similar 
activities that would cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions. At each of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
we had no concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of total loans other than loans in the categories listed in the table above.  

Investment Securities  

We purchase investment securities primarily to provide a source for meeting liquidity needs, with return on investment a secondary 
consideration. We also use investment securities as collateral for certain deposits and other types of borrowing. Investment securities totaled 
$99.0 million at March 31, 2015, an increase of $6.2 million, or 6.6%, from $92.8 million at December 31, 2014. Our increase in investment 
securities at March 31, 2015 compared to December 31, 2014 was primarily due to our investment of cash not used in our lending activities into 
investment securities.  

The securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S. government agency obligations, mortgage-backed securities and municipal securities, although 
the Company also holds corporate bonds and equity securities. The Asset Liability Committee (“ALCO”) reviews the investment portfolio on an 
ongoing basis to ensure that the investments conform to the Company’s investment policy.  
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(dollars in thousands)  

   
One Year or  

Less     

   After One  
Year Through 

Five Years        

After Five  
Years Through 

Ten Years        

After Ten  
Years Through 
Fifteen Years        

After Fifteen 
Years        Total     

Construction and development    $ 44,834      $ 20,801       $ 3,363       $ 4,973       $ -       $ 73,971    
1-4 Family       9,202         21,343          43,091          27,429          38,722          139,787    
Multifamily       3,495         7,290          7,359          1,075          -          19,219    
Farmland       400         39          695          2,136          -          3,270    
Commercial real estate                                                                    

Owner occupied        9,729          43,767          40,261          30,381          70          124,208    
Nonowner occupied        5,748          43,358          44,058          8,343          11,893          113,400    

Total mortgage loans on real estate        73,408          136,598          138,827          74,337          50,685          473,855    
Commercial and industrial        15,572          17,665          20,561          2,466          2,539          58,803    
Consumer        1,512          81,563          30,290          416          -          113,781    

Total loans     $ 90,492       $ 235,826       $ 189,678       $ 77,219       $ 53,224       $ 646,439    



   
   

The following table shows the carrying value of our investment securities portfolio by investment type and the percentage that such investment 
type comprises of our entire portfolio as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The investment portfolio consists of available for sale and held to maturity securities. Held to maturity securities are stated at amortized cost. 
The carrying values of the Company’s available for sale securities are adjusted for unrealized gains or losses as valuation allowances, and any 
gains or losses are reported on an after-tax basis as a component of other comprehensive income. Any expected credit loss due to the inability to 
collect all amounts due according to the security’s contractual terms is recognized as a charge against earnings. Any remaining unrealized loss 
related to other factors would be recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes.  

The following table sets forth the stated maturities and weighted average yields of our investment debt securities based on the amortized cost of 
our investment portfolio as of March 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The maturity of mortgage-backed securities reflects scheduled repayments based upon the contractual maturities of the securities. Weighted 
average yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a fully tax equivalent basis assuming a federal tax rate of 34%.  

Premises and Equipment  

Bank premises and equipment increased $0.6 million, or 2.1%, to $29.1 million at March 31, 2015 from $28.5 million at December 31, 2014, 
primarily due to the relocation of our Prairieville branch in the first quarter of 2015.  
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   March 31, 2015           December 31, 2014        

   Balance        
Percentage of  

Portfolio           Balance        
Percentage of  

Portfolio        

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and  
     corporations  $ 10,877         11.0    %    $ 8,339         9.0    % 
Mortgage-backed securities     52,549         53.1             51,715         55.7       
Obligations of state and political subdivisions     26,911         27.2             26,811         28.9       
Corporate bonds     7,834         7.9             5,419         5.8       
Equity securities     815         0.8             534         0.6       
     Total  $ 98,986         100.0    %    $ 92,818         100.0    % 

   One Year or Less        
After One Year  

Through   Five Years        
After Five Years  

Through Ten Years        After Ten Years     
   Amount        Yield        Amount        Yield        Amount        Yield        Amount        Yield     

Held to maturity:                                                                                           
Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations  $ -         -      $ -         -      $ -         -      $ 3,981         2.21 % 
Mortgage-backed securities     -         -         -         -         -         -         3,416         2.43 % 
Obligations of states and political  
     subdivisions     620         7.07 %      2,815         7.07 %      4,365         7.07 %      7,172         4.33 % 
Available for sale:                                                                                
Obligations of other U.S. government  
     agencies and corporations     -         -         279         2.34 %      2,890         2.43 %      3,700         2.53 % 
Mortgage-backed securities     -         -         1,238         2.08 %      6,813         1.85 %      40,410         2.22 % 
Obligations of states and political  
     subdivisions     -         -         1,391         2.57 %      6,065         3.26 %      4,302         3.40 % 
Corporate bonds     -         -         900         1.21 %      6,941         2.08 %      -         -    
   $ 620                $ 6,623                $ 27,074                $ 62,981              



   
   

Deposits  

The following table sets forth the composition of our deposits and the percentage of each deposit type to total deposits at March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
Total deposits at March 31, 2015 were $698.9 million, an increase of $70.8 million, or 11.3%, from December 31, 2014. The increase in total 
deposits was driven primarily by an increase in NOW accounts of $28.5 million, or 24.5%, an increase of $14.2 million, or 20.2%, in 
noninterest-bearing demand deposits, and an increase in time deposits of $19.4 million, or 6.3%, from December 31, 2014. We believe our 
deposit cross sell strategy continues to impact both noninterest-bearing demand deposit and NOW account growth.  

Our management is focused on growing and maintaining a stable source of funding, specifically core deposits, and allowing more costly deposits 
to mature, within the context of mitigating interest rate risk and maintaining our net interest margin and sufficient levels of liquidity. As we have 
grown, our deposit mix has evolved from a primary reliance on certificates of deposit, which are less relationship driven and less dependent on 
the convenience of branch locations than other types of deposit accounts. As our branch network has expanded and the reach of our relationship-
driven approach to banking has grown, our mix of deposits has shifted and is relatively balanced between transactional accounts, such as 
checking, savings, money market and NOW accounts, and certificates of deposits.  

The following table shows the maturity of certificates of deposit and other time deposits of $100,000 or more at March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

Borrowings  

Total borrowings include securities sold under agreements to repurchase, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”), a line of credit 
with First National Bankers Bankshares, Inc. FNBB (“FNBB”), and junior subordinated debentures. Securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase increased $0.6 million to $12.9 million at March 31, 2015 from $12.3 million at December 31, 2014. Our advances from the FHLB 
were $34.9 million at March 31, 2015, a decrease of $90.9 million, or 72.3%, from FHLB advances of $125.8 million at December 31, 2014. 
Excess cash not used in our lending activities or to purchase investment securities was used to pay down these advances. We had no funds drawn 
on the line of credit with FNBB at March 31, 2015. The notes payable balance of $3.6 million at March 31, 2015 is comprised of the junior 
subordinated debentures that we assumed in connection with the FCB acquisition.  
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   March 31, 2015           December 31, 2014        

   Amount       

Percentage of  
Total  

Deposits           Amount       

Percentage of  
Total  

Deposits        

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits  $ 84,402         12.1    %    $ 70,217         11.2    % 
NOW accounts     145,181         20.7             116,644         18.6       
Money market deposit accounts     85,024         12.2             77,589         12.3       
Savings accounts     54,533         7.8             53,332         8.5       
Time deposits     329,752         47.2             310,336         49.4       

Total deposits  $ 698,892         100.0    %    $ 628,118         100.0    % 

   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Time remaining until maturity:  
Certificates of 

Deposit        
Other Time  

Deposits        
Certificates of 

Deposit        
Other Time  

Deposits     

Three months or less  $ 4,619      $ 234      $ 24,193      $ -    
Over three months through six months     4,706         -         4,554         234    
Over six months through twelve months     7,525         336         7,617         208    
Over one year through three years     8,561         -         8,421         128    
Over three years     1,078         103         1,386         123    
   $ 26,489      $ 673      $ 46,171      $ 693    



   
   

The average balances and cost of funds of short-term borrowings for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 
2014 are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):  
   

Results of Operations  

Performance Summary  

Three months ended March 31, 2015 vs. three months ended March 31, 2014 . For the three months ended March 31, 2015, net income was $2.0 
million, or $0.27 per basic and diluted share, compared to net income of $0.9 million, or $0.23 per basic share and $0.21 per diluted share, for 
the three months ended March 31, 2014. The increase in net income is primarily attributable to a $1.6 million increase in net interest income. 
Return on average assets increased to 0.91% for the three months ended March 31, 2015 from 0.55% for the three months ended March 31, 2014 
due to the increase in net income. Return on average equity was 7.54% for the three months ended March 31, 2015 as compared to 6.32% for the 
three months ended March 31, 2014.  

Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin  

Net interest income, which is the largest component of our earnings, is the difference between interest earned on assets and the cost of interest-
bearing liabilities. The primary factors affecting net interest income are the volume, yield and mix of our rate-sensitive assets and liabilities as 
well as the amount of our nonperforming loans and the interest rate environment.  

The primary factors affecting net interest margin are changes in interest rates, competition and the shape of the interest rate yield curve. The 
decline in interest rates since 2008 has put significant downward pressure on net interest margin over the past few years. Each rate reduction in 
interest rate indices and, in particular, the prime rate, rates paid on U.S. Treasury securities and the London Interbank Offering Rate, resulted in a 
reduction in the yield on our variable rate loans indexed to one of these indices. However, rates on our deposits and other interest-bearing 
liabilities did not decline proportionally. To offset the effects on our net interest income and net interest margin from the prevailing interest rate 
environment, we have continued to focus our interest-earning assets in loans and shift our interest-bearing liabilities from higher-costing 
deposits, like certificates of deposit, to noninterest-bearing and other lower cost deposits.  

Three months ended March 31, 2015 vs. three months ended March 31, 2014 . Net interest income increased 27.8% to $7.5 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 2015 from $5.9 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was a direct result of continued growth of the 
Company’s loan portfolio with an increase in net interest income of $2.1 million due to an increase in volume offset by a $0.5 million decrease 
related to a reduction in yield when compared to the first quarter of 2014. For the three months ended March 31, 2015, average loans increased 
approximately $181.8 million as compared to the same period in 2014, while average investment securities increased approximately $19.7 
million. Over the same comparative period, average interest-bearing liabilities increased approximately $147.2 million. All of these changes 
were driven by organic loan and deposit growth.  

Net interest margin was 3.71% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, down 22 basis points from 3.93% for the three months ended March 
31, 2014. The yield on interest-earning assets was 4.35% for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 compared to 4.65% for the first quarter of 2014. 
Consumer loan fees were historically recognized as a component of interest income. Now that the Company has transitioned to selling a majority 
of the consumer loans that it originates, the fees earned on consumer loans are now included in noninterest income, impacting the yield realized 
on the consumer loan portfolio. Including consumer loan fees in interest income in the quarter ended March 31, 2015 would result in a net 
interest margin and yield on interest-earning assets of 3.82% and 4.46%, respectively, compared to the net interest margin and yield on interest-
earning assets of 3.93% and 4.65%, respectively, recognized in the first quarter of 2014.  

Interest income was $8.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to $7.0 million for the same period in 2014 as a result of 
an increase in the volume of interest-earning assets, offset by a decrease in the rate earned on such assets. As the average balances table below 
illustrates, loan interest income made up substantially all of our interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. 
Competitive factors and the prolonged low interest rate environment have contributed to a lower yield on earning assets. The overall yield on 
interest-earning assets decreased 30 basis points to 4.35% for the three months ended March 31,  
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   Average Balances        Cost of Funds  
   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014        March 31, 2015           December 31, 2014        
Federal funds purchased and other  
     short-term borrowings  $  40,657      $  16,521         0.17    %       0.16    %  
Securities sold under agreements  
     to repurchase     12,747         11,828         0.20            0.23       

Total short-term borrowings  $  53,404      $  28,349         0.18    %       0.19    %  



   
   

2015 as compared to 4.65% for the same period in 2014. The loan portfolio yielded 4.71% for the three months ended March 31, 2015 as 
compared to 5.08% for the three months ended March 31, 2014.  

Interest expense was $1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $0.2 million compared to interest expense of $1.1 
million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, as a result of an increase in the volume of interest-bearing liabilities, offset by a decrease in 
cost of such liabilities. The cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased 5 basis points to 0.78% for the three months ended March 31, 2015 
compared to the same period in 2014. In particular, the weighted average rate paid on long-term debt decreased 17 basis points during the three 
months ended March 31, 2015 compared to same period in 2014. The decrease in deposit rates was driven by competitive factors and the general 
interest rate environment, as well as our strategy to cross-sell using lower cost deposits.  

Average Balances and Yields . The following table sets forth average balance sheet data, including all major categories of interest-earning assets 
and interest-bearing liabilities, together with the interest earned or paid and the average yield or rate paid on each such category for the three 
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. Averages presented below are daily averages and include the average balances of nonaccruing assets in 
the respective line items (dollars in thousands):  
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   Three months ended March 31,        
   2015           2014        

   
Average  
Balance        

Interest  
Income/  

Expense (1)        Yield/ Rate (1)           
Average  
Balance        

Interest  
Income/  

Expense (1)        Yield/ Rate (1)        
Assets                                                                             
Interest-earning assets:                                                                             
Loans  $ 714,338      $ 8,298         4.71    %     $ 532,547      $ 6,675         5.08    %  
Securities:                                                                    

Taxable     68,528         366         2.17             53,607         191         1.44       
Tax-exempt     18,979         119         2.54             14,194         81         2.31       

Interest-earning balances with banks     18,031         17         0.38             5,812         10         0.70       
Total interest-earning assets     819,876         8,800         4.35             606,160         6,957         4.65       

Cash and due from banks     5,689                                 10,865                           
Intangible assets     3,209                                 3,251                           
Other assets     45,256                                 34,397                           
Allowance for loan losses     (5,022 )                               (3,396 )                         

Total assets  $ 869,008                              $ 651,277                           

                                                                      
Liabilities and stockholders' equity                                                                         
Interest-bearing liabilities:                                                                     
Deposits:                                                                     

Interest-bearing demand  $ 204,728      $ 310         0.61    %     $ 158,712      $ 242         0.62    %  
Savings deposits     55,729         94         0.68             51,927         89         0.70       
Time deposits     324,240         788         0.99             272,835         672         1.00       

Total interest-bearing deposits     584,697         1,192         0.83             483,474         1,003         0.84       
Short-term borrowings     53,404         24         0.18             15,098         4         0.11       
Long-term debt     41,790         85         0.82             34,133         83         0.99       

Total interest-bearing liabilities     679,891         1,301         0.78             532,705         1,090         0.83       
Noninterest-bearing deposits     77,226                                 59,166                           
Other liabilities     6,975                                 2,965                           
Stockholders' equity     104,916                                 56,441                           

Total liabilities and stockholders’  equity  $ 869,008                               $ 651,277                            

Net interest income/net interest margin            $ 7,499         3.71    %               $ 5,867         3.93    %  

(1) 
 

Interest income and net interest margin are expressed as a percentage of average interest-earning assets outstanding for the indicated 
periods. Interest expense is expressed as a percentage of average interest-bearing liabilities for the indicated periods.  



   
   

Volume/Rate Analysis . The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in interest earned and interest paid resulting from changes in 
volume and rates for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the same period in 2014 (dollars in thousands):  
   

Noninterest Income  

Noninterest income includes, among other things, fees generated from our deposit services and in connection with our mortgage and consumer 
loan activities, gains on sales of loans, and securities gains. We expect to continue to develop new products that generate noninterest income and 
enhance our existing products in order to diversify our revenue sources.  

Three months ended March 31, 2015 vs. three months ended March 31, 2014 . Total noninterest income increased $1.4 million, or 138.3%, to 
$2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to $1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014. This increase 
resulted primarily from an increase of $1.1 million in gain on sale of loans.  

Gain on sale of loans is our largest component of noninterest income for the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase of $1.1 million, 
or 177.4%, to $1.7 million compared to $0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was generated by increased originations and 
sales of pools of our consumer loans, including the two loan sales that were postponed by the buyer to the first quarter of 2015. We expect to 
continue to sell pools of our consumer loans quarterly as part of our ongoing loan portfolio management.  

Service charges on deposit accounts include maintenance fees on accounts, account enhancement charges for additional deposit account features, 
per item charges and overdraft fees. Service charges on deposits increased 49.2% to $94,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 as 
compared to $63,000 for the same period in 2014. The increase is a direct result of organic deposit growth.  

Fee income on loans held for sale increased to $0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 from $0.1 million for the same period in 
2014 due to an increase of $66.4 million in originations of consumer loans held for sale.  

Other operating income was $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to $0.2 million for the same period in 2014. 
Other operating income consists of interchange fees, ATM surcharge income, loan servicing fees and rental income.  

Noninterest Expense  

Noninterest expense includes salaries and benefits and other costs associated with the Company’s operations. We are committed to managing our 
costs within the framework of our operating strategy. However, since we are focused on growing both organically and through acquisition, we 
expect our expenses to continue to increase as we add employees and physical locations to accommodate our growing franchise.  
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   Three months ended March 31, 2015 vs.  
three months ended March 31, 2014     

   Volume        Rate        Net (1)    
         
Interest income:                                   
Loans  $ 2,279       $ (656 )    $ 1,623    
Securities:                                

Taxable     54          121         175    
Tax-exempt     27          11         38    

Interest-earning balances with banks     17          (10 )      7    
Total interest-earning assets     2,377          (534 )       1,843    
                                 

Interest expense:                                
Interest-bearing demand deposits     70         (2 )      68    
Savings deposits     6         (1 )      5    
Time deposits     127         (11 )      116    
Short-term borrowings     10         10         20    
Long-term debt     19         (17 )      2    

Total interest-bearing liabilities     232          (21 )       211    
Change in net interest income  $ 2,145       $ (513 )    $ 1,632    

(1) 
 

Changes in interest due to both volume and rate have been allocated on a pro-rata basis using the absolute ratio value of amounts 
calculated.  



   
   

Three months ended March 31, 2015 vs. three months ended March 31, 2014 . Total noninterest expense was $6.4 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 2015, an increase of $1.0 million, or 19.3%, from $5.4 million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily a result 
of increased costs associated with the opening of our Highland Road branch in Baton Rouge, Louisiana during the third quarter of 2014 and our 
organic growth.  

Income Tax Expense  

Income tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2015 was $1.0 million, an increase of $0.6 million from $0.4 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 2014. The effective tax rate for the three months ending March 31, 2015 and 2014 was 33.1% and 32.5%, respectively.  

Risk Management  

The primary risks associated with our operations are credit, interest rate and liquidity risk. Credit and interest rate risk are discussed below, while 
liquidity risk is discussed in this section under the heading Liquidity and Capital Resources below.  

Credit Risk and the Allowance for Loan Losses  

General . The risk of loss should a borrower default on a loan is inherent in any lending activity. Our portfolio and related credit risk are 
monitored and managed on an ongoing basis by our risk management department, the board of directors’ loan committee and the full board of 
directors. We utilize a ten point risk-rating system, which assigns a risk grade to each borrower based on a number of quantitative and qualitative 
factors associated with a loan transaction. The risk grade categorizes the loan into one of five risk categories, based on information about the 
ability of borrowers to service the debt. The information includes, among other factors, current financial information about the borrower, 
historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information and current economic trends. These categories assist management in 
monitoring our credit quality. The following describes each of the risk categories, which are consistent with the definitions used in guidance 
promulgated by federal banking regulators:  

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, there were no loans classified as doubtful or loss, while there were $5.0 million and $5.6 million of 
loans classified as substandard at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and $1.1 million and $0.5 million, respectively, of loans 
classified as special mention as of such dates. Of the $6.1 million in total substandard and special mention loans at March 31, 2015, $3.1 million 
were acquired in the FCB acquisition and marked to fair value at the time of their acquisition, while $3.7 million of the $6.1 million of total 
substandard and special mention loans at December 31, 2014 were acquired in the FCB acquisition and marked to fair value.  

An external loan review consultant is engaged annually by the risk management department to review approximately 40% of commercial loans, 
utilizing a risk-based approach designed to maximize the effectiveness of the review. In addition, credit analysts  
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•  Pass (grades 1-6) – Loans not meeting the criteria below are considered pass. These loans have high credit characteristics and 
financial strength. The borrowers at least generate profits and cash flow that are in line with peer and industry standards and have 
debt service coverage ratios above loan covenants and our policy guidelines. For some of these loans, a guaranty from a financially 
capable party mitigates characteristics of the borrower that might otherwise result in a lower grade.  

•  Special Mention (grade 7) – Loans classified as special mention possess some credit deficiencies that need to be corrected to avoid a 
greater risk of default in the future. For example, financial ratios relating to the borrower may have deteriorated. Often, a special 
mention categorization is temporary while certain factors are analyzed or matters addressed before the loan is re-categorized as 
either pass or substandard.  

•  Substandard (grade 8) – Loans rated as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the 
borrower or the liquidation value of any collateral. If deficiencies are not addressed, it is likely that this category of loan will result 
in the Bank incurring a loss. Where a borrower has been unable to adjust to industry or general economic conditions, the borrower’s 
loan is often categorized as substandard.  

•  Doubtful (grade 9) – Doubtful loans are substandard loans with one or more additional negative factors that makes full collection of 
amounts outstanding, either through repayment or liquidation of collateral, highly questionable and improbable.  

•  Loss (grade 10) – Loans classified as loss have deteriorated to such a point that it is not practicable to defer writing off the loan. For 
these loans, all efforts to remediate the loan’s negative characteristics have failed and the value of the collateral, if any, has severely 
deteriorated relative to the amount outstanding. Although some value may be recovered on such a loan, it is not significant in 
relation to the amount borrowed.  



   
   

periodically review smaller dollar commercial loans to identify negative financial trends related to any one borrower, any related groups of 
borrowers or an industry. For collateral dependent loans, new appraisals are obtained on an annual basis. All loans not categorized as Pass are 
put on an internal watch list, with quarterly reports to the board of directors. In addition, a written status report is maintained by our special 
assets division for all commercial loans categorized as Substandard or worse. We use this information in connection with our collection efforts.  

If our collection efforts are unsuccessful, collateral securing loans may be repossessed and sold or, for loans secured by real estate, foreclosure 
proceedings initiated. The collateral is sold at public auction for fair market value (based upon recent appraisals), with fees associated with the 
foreclosure being deducted from the sales price. The purchase price is applied to the outstanding loan balance. If the loan balance is greater than 
the sales proceeds, the deficient balance is charged-off.  

Allowance for Loan Losses . The allowance for loan losses is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb probable losses 
inherent in the entire loan portfolio. The appropriate level of the allowance is based on an ongoing analysis of the loan portfolio and represents 
an amount that management deems adequate to provide for inherent losses, including collective impairment as recognized under ASC 450, 
Contingencies . Collective impairment is calculated based on loans grouped by grade. Another component of the allowance is losses on loans 
assessed as impaired under ASC 310, Receivables . The balance of these loans and their related allowance is included in management’s 
estimation and analysis of the allowance for loan losses. Other considerations in establishing the allowance for loan losses include the nature and 
volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, historical loan loss, review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions that 
may affect our borrowers’ ability to pay, as well as trends within each of these factors. The allowance for loan losses is established after input 
from management as well as our risk management department and our special assets committee. We evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for 
loan losses on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as 
more information becomes available. The allowance for loan losses was $5.4 million at March 31, 2015, an increase from $4.6 million at 
December 31, 2014, as we increased our loan loss provisioning to reflect our organic loan growth.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect the scheduled 
payments of principal and interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Generally, those loans rated substandard 
or special mention are evaluated for impairment each quarter. Determination of impairment is treated the same across all classes of loans. When 
we identify a loan as impaired, we measure the extent of the impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at 
the loan’s effective interest rate, except when the sole (remaining) source of repayment for the loans is the operation or liquidation of the 
collateral. In these cases when foreclosure is probable, we use the current fair value of the collateral, less estimated selling costs, instead of 
discounted cash flows. For real estate collateral, the fair value of the collateral is based upon a recent appraisal by a qualified and licensed 
appraiser. If we determine that the value of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (net of previous charge-offs, 
deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount), we recognize impairment through an allowance estimate or a charge-off 
recorded against the allowance for loan losses.  

Impaired loans at March 31, 2015 were $4.2 million, including impaired loans acquired in the FCB acquisition in the amount of $1.4 million, 
and $3.6 million, including impaired loans acquired in the FCB acquisition in the amount of $1.3 million, at December 31, 2014. At March 31, 
2015 and December 31, 2014, $0.1 million of the allowance for loan losses was specifically allocated to impaired loans.  

The provision for loan losses is a charge to income in an amount that management believes is necessary to maintain an adequate allowance for loan 
losses. The provision is based on management’s regular evaluation of current economic conditions in our specific markets as well as regionally and 
nationally, changes in the character and size of the loan portfolio, underlying collateral values securing loans, and other factors which deserve 
recognition in estimating loan losses. For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the provision for loan losses was $0.7 million and $0.2 
million, respectively. The increase is due primarily to the overall growth in our loan portfolio, including our commercial real estate loans.  

Acquired loans that are accounted for under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, were marked to 
market on the date we acquired the loans to values which, in management’s opinion, reflected the estimated future cash flows, based on the facts 
and circumstances surrounding each respective loan at the date of acquisition. Acquired FCB loans had a carrying value of $78.4 million and a 
fair value of $77.5 million on the acquisition date. We continually monitor these loans as part of our normal credit review and monitoring 
procedures for changes in the estimated future cash flows. Because ASC 310-30 does not permit carry over or recognition of an allowance for 
loan losses, we may be required to reserve for these loans in the allowance for loan losses through future provision for loan losses if future cash 
flows deteriorate below initial projections. There was no provision for loan losses charged to operating expense attributable to loans accounted 
for under ASC 310-30 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.  
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The following table presents the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
As discussed above, the balance in the allowance for loan losses is principally influenced by the provision for loan losses and by net loan loss 
experience. Additions to the allowance are charged to the provision for loan losses. Losses are charged to the allowance as incurred and 
recoveries on losses previously charged to the allowance are credited to the allowance at the time recovery is collected. The table below reflects 
the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

   
The allowance for loan losses to total loans ratio increased to 0.83% at March 31, 2015 compared to 0.67% at March 31, 2014. The allowance 
for loan losses to nonperforming loans ratio decreased to 178% at March 31, 2015 from 206% at March 31, 2014.  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Construction and development  $ 638      $ 526    
1-4 family     1,024          909    
Multifamily     164          137    
Farmland     23          18    
Commercial real estate     1,958          1,571    

Total mortgage loans on real estate     3,807          3,161    
Commercial and industrial     409          390    
Consumer     1,163          1,079    

Total  $ 5,379       $ 4,630    

   Three months ended March 31,     

   2015        2014     

Allowance at beginning of period  $ 4,630       $ 3,380    
Provision for loan losses     700          245    
Charge-offs:                       

Mortgage loans on real estate:                       
Construction and development     (5 )        -    
1-4 Family     -          (30 )  
Multifamily     -          -    
Farmland     -          -    
Commercial real estate     -          (3 )  

Commercial and industrial     (56 )        -    
Consumer     (81 )        (75 )  

Total charge-offs     (142 )        (108 )  
Recoveries                       

Mortgage loans on real estate:                       
Construction and development     1          1    
1-4 Family     3          -    
Multifamily     -          -    
Farmland     -          -    
Commercial real estate     -          -    

Commercial and industrial     180          -    
Consumer     7          12    

Total recoveries     191          13    
Net recoveries (charge-offs)     49          (95 )  
Balance at end of period  $ 5,379       $ 3,530    

                        
Net charge-offs to:                       

Loans - average     -0.01 %       0.02 % 
Allowance for loan losses     -0.91 %       2.69 % 

Allowance for loan losses to:                       
Total loans     0.83 %       0.67 % 
Nonperforming loans     178 %       206 % 



   
   

Charge-offs reflect the realization of losses in the portfolio that were recognized previously through the provision for loan losses. Net recoveries 
for the three months ended March 31, 2015 were $49,000, equal to 0.01% of our average loan balance as of that date. Net charge-offs for the 
three months ended March 31, 2014 were $0.1 million, equal to 0.02% of our average loan balance as of that date. For the three months ended 
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, the majority of our charge-offs were consumer loans. Net charge-offs of our consumer loans as a 
percentage of average consumer loans for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 were 0.04%.  

Management believes the allowance for loan losses at March 31, 2015 is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our portfolio. 
Although the allowance for loan losses is considered adequate by management, there can be no assurance that this allowance will prove to be 
adequate over time to cover ultimate losses in connection with our loans. This allowance may prove to be inadequate due to unanticipated 
adverse changes in the economy or discrete events adversely affecting specific customers or industries. Our results of operations and financial 
condition could be materially, adversely affected to the extent that the allowance is insufficient to cover such changes or events.  

Nonperforming Assets and Restructured Loans . Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and other real estate owned. 
Nonperforming loans are those on which the accrual of interest has stopped or loans which are contractually 90 days past due on which interest 
continues to accrue. Loans are ordinarily placed on nonaccrual when a loan is specifically determined to be impaired or when principal and 
interest is delinquent for 90 days or more. However, management may elect to continue the accrual when the estimated net available value of 
collateral is sufficient to cover the principal balance and accrued interest. It is our policy to discontinue the accrual of interest income on any 
loan for which we have reasonable doubt as to the payment of interest or principal. Nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status when the 
financial position of the borrower indicates there is no longer any reasonable doubt as to the payment of principal or interest.  

Another category of assets which contributes to our credit risk is troubled debt restructurings (“TDR”), or restructured loans. A restructured loan 
is a loan for which a concession has been granted to the borrower for other than an insignificant period of time due to a deterioration of the 
borrower’s financial condition. Such concessions may include reduction in interest rates, deferral of interest or principal payments, principal 
forgiveness and other actions intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of the collateral. We strive to 
identify borrowers in financial difficulty early and work with them to modify to more affordable terms before such loans reach nonaccrual status. 
In evaluating whether to restructure a loan, management analyzes the long-term financial condition of the borrower, including guarantor and 
collateral support, to determine whether the proposed concessions will increase the likelihood of repayment of principal and interest. 
Restructured loans that are not performing in accordance with their restructured terms and that are either contractually 90 days past due or placed 
on nonaccrual status are reported as nonperforming loans.  

Loans classified as TDRs, consisting of ten credits, totaled approximately $1.5 million at March 31, 2015 compared to seven credits totaling $0.6 
million at December 31, 2014. Nine of the ten TDRs were acquired from FCB and were considered restructured loans due to a modification of 
terms through adjustments to maturity. One restructured loan was considered a TDR due to a modification of terms through principal payment 
forbearance, paying interest only for a specified period of time. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, one of the restructured loans with 
a balance of $0.4 million was in default of its modified terms and had been placed on nonaccrual.  

The following table shows the principal amounts of nonperforming and restructured loans as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. All 
loans where information exists about possible credit problems that would cause us to have serious doubts about the borrower’s ability to comply 
with the current repayment terms of the loan have been reflected in the table below (dollars in thousands):  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     
Nonaccrual loans  $ 3,015       $ 3,340    
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more     -          -    

Total nonperforming loans     3,015          3,340    
Restructured loans     1,138          226    

Total nonperforming and restructured loans  $ 4,153       $ 3,566    

Interest income recognized on nonperforming and restructured loans     32          105    

Interest income foregone on nonperforming and restructured loans     70          169    



   
   
Of our total nonaccrual loans at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, $1.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively, were acquired in the FCB 
acquisition. Nonperforming loans outstanding represented 0.47% of total loans at March 31, 2015. Nonperforming loans other than those 
acquired through an acquisition and nonperforming acquired loans represented 0.31% and 0.16%, respectively, of total loans at such date. 
Nonperforming loans outstanding, including acquired loans, represented 0.54% of total loans at December 31, 2014.  

Other Real Estate Owned. Other real estate owned consists of properties acquired through foreclosure or acceptance of a deed in lieu of 
foreclosure. These properties are carried at the lower of cost or fair market value based on appraised value less estimated selling costs. Losses 
arising at the time of foreclosure of properties are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Other real estate owned with a cost basis of $0.4 
million was sold during the three months ended March 31, 2015, resulting in a net loss of $1,000 for the period. For the three months ended 
March 31, 2014, other real estate owned with a cost basis of $0.1 million was sold resulting in a net loss of $3,000 for the period.  

At March 31, 2015, $1.1 million of our other real estate owned was related to our acquisition of FCB compared to $1.3 million at December 31, 
2014. In connection with our acquisition of FCB, the Bank agreed to share with the former FCB shareholders the proceeds that we receive in 
connection with the sale of one piece of property, which had a carrying value and a fair market value of $0.6 million as of March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014, respectively. Under this arrangement, if this property is sold within four years of the closing date of our acquisition of FCB, 
then we are entitled to retain the first $0.7 million of the sale proceeds plus an amount necessary to cover our selling expenses, with the 
remaining proceeds, if any, to be paid to former FCB shareholders. After the fourth anniversary of the closing date, which is May 1, 2017, we are 
entitled to retain all sales proceeds arising upon the sale of this property.  

The following table provides details of our other real estate owned as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

Changes in other real estate owned were as follows for the periods presented (dollars in thousands):  
   

Interest Rate Risk  

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. Since the majority of our assets and liabilities are monetary in 
nature, our market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in our lending and deposit activities. A sudden and substantial change in 
interest rates may adversely impact our earnings and profitability because the interest rates borne by assets and liabilities do not change at the 
same speed, to the same extent or on the same basis. Accordingly, our ability to proactively structure the volume and mix of our assets and 
liabilities to address anticipated changes in interest rates, as well as to react quickly to such fluctuations, can significantly impact our financial 
results. To that end, management actively monitors and manages our interest rate risk exposure.  

The Asset Liability Committee has been authorized by the board of directors to implement our asset/liability management policy, which 
establishes guidelines with respect to our exposure to interest rate fluctuations, liquidity, loan limits as a percentage of funding sources, exposure 
to correspondent banks and brokers and reliance on non-core deposits. The goal of the policy is to enable us to maximize our interest income and 
maintain our net interest margin without exposing the Bank to excessive interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Within that framework, 
the ALCO monitors our interest rate sensitivity and makes decisions relating to our asset/liability composition.  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

                        
Construction and development  $ 2,090       $ 2,130    
1-4 Family     433          605    
Commercial real estate     45          -    
     Total other real estate owned  $ 2,568       $ 2,735    

   Three months ended        Year ended     
   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

Balance, beginning of period  $ 2,735       $ 3,515    
Transfers from loans     218          -    
Transfers from acquired loans     45          706    
Sales of other real estate owned     (417 )       (1,276 ) 
Write-downs     (13 )       (210 ) 
Balance, end of period  $ 2,568       $ 2,735    



   
   

We monitor the impact of changes in interest rates on our net interest income using gap analysis. The gap represents the net position of our assets 
and liabilities subject to repricing in specified time periods. During any given time period, if the amount of rate-sensitive liabilities exceeds the 
amount of rate-sensitive assets, a financial institution would generally be considered to have a negative gap position and would benefit from 
falling rates over that period of time. Conversely, a financial institution with a positive gap position would generally benefit from rising rates.  

Within the gap position that management directs, we attempt to structure our assets and liabilities to minimize the risk of either a rising or falling 
interest rate environment. We manage our gap position for time horizons of one month, two months, three months, 4-6 months, 7-12 months, 13-
24 months, 25-36 months, 37-60 months and more than 60 months. The goal of our asset/liability management is for the Bank to maintain a net 
interest income at risk in an up or down 100 basis point environment at less than (5)%. At March 31, 2015 the Bank was within the policy 
guidelines.  

The following table depicts the estimated impact on net interest income of immediate changes in interest rates at the specified levels for the 
period presented:  
   

The computation of the prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes requires numerous assumptions regarding characteristics of new 
business and the behavior of existing positions. These business assumptions are based upon our experience, business plans and published 
industry experience. Key assumptions include asset prepayment speeds, competitive factors, the relative price sensitivity of certain assets and 
liabilities and the expected life of non-maturity deposits. However, there are a number of factors that influence the effect of interest rate 
fluctuations on us which are difficult to measure and predict. For example, a rapid drop in interest rates might cause our loans to repay at a more 
rapid pace and certain mortgage-related investments to prepay more quickly than projected. This could mitigate some of the benefits of falling 
rates as are expected when we are in a negatively-gapped position. Conversely, a rapid rise in rates could give us an opportunity to increase our 
margins and stifle the rate of repayment on our mortgage-related loans which would increase our returns. As a result, because these assumptions 
are inherently uncertain, actual results will differ from simulated results.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

Liquidity. Liquidity is a measure of the ability to fund loan commitments and meet deposit maturities and withdrawals in a timely and cost-
effective way. Cash flow requirements can be met by generating net income, attracting new deposits, converting assets to cash or borrowing 
funds. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds, deposit outflows, loan prepayments, 
loan sales and borrowings are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and the competitive environment in which we 
operate. To minimize funding risks, we closely monitor our liquidity position through periodic reviews of maturity profiles, yield and rate 
behaviors, and loan and deposit forecasts. Excess short-term liquidity is usually invested in overnight federal funds sold.  

Our core deposits, which are deposits excluding time deposits greater than $250,000 and deposits of municipalities and other political entities, 
are our most stable source of liquidity to meet our cash flow needs due to the nature of the long-term relationships generally established with our 
customers. Maintaining the ability to acquire these funds as needed in a variety of markets, and within ALCO compliance targets, is essential to 
ensuring our liquidity. At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 65% and 67% of our total assets, respectively, were funded by core deposits.  
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As of March 31, 2015     

Changes in Interest Rates  
(in basis points)     

Estimated  
Increase/Decrease in  

Net Interest Income (1)     
+400     (8.63 )% 
+300     (6.25 )% 
+200     (2.99 )% 
+100     (2.00 )% 
-100     1.53 %  
-200     (1.34 )% 
-300     (5.15 )% 

(1) 
 

The percentage change in this column represents the projected net interest income for 12 months on a flat balance sheet in a stable interest 
rate environment versus the projected net interest income in the various rate scenarios.  



   
   

Our investment portfolio is another alternative for meeting our cash flow requirements. Investment securities generate cash flow through 
principal payments and maturities, and they generally have readily available markets that allow for their conversion to cash. Some securities are 
pledged to secure certain deposit types or short-term borrowings, such as FHLB advances, which impacts their liquidity. At March 31, 2015, 
securities with a carrying value of $66.7 million were pledged to secure deposits or borrowings, compared to $63.1 million in pledged securities 
as of December 31, 2014.  

Other sources available for meeting liquidity needs include advances from the FHLB, repurchase agreements and other borrowings. FHLB 
advances are primarily used to match-fund fixed rate loans in order to minimize interest rate risk and also may be used to meet day to day 
liquidity needs, particularly if the prevailing interest rate on an FHLB advance compares favorably to the rates that we would be required to pay 
to attract deposits. At March 31, 2015, the balance of our outstanding advances with the FHLB was $34.9 million, a decrease from $125.8 
million at December 31, 2014. The total amount of the remaining credit available to us from the FHLB at March 31, 2015 was $238.4 million. 
Repurchase agreements are contracts for the sale of securities which we own with a corresponding agreement to repurchase those securities at an 
agreed upon price and date. Our policies limit the use of repurchase agreements to those collateralized by U.S. Treasury and agency securities. 
We had $12.9 million of repurchase agreements outstanding as of March 31, 2015, compared to $12.3 million of outstanding repurchase 
agreements as December 31, 2014. Finally, we maintain lines of credit with other commercial banks totaling $33.6 million. One line of credit, in 
the amount of $5.0 million, is secured by all of the stock of the Bank, while the other lines of credit are unsecured, uncommitted lines of credit. 
The lines of credit mature at various times within the next twelve months.  

Our liquidity strategy is focused on using the least costly funds available to us in the context of our balance sheet composition and interest rate 
risk position. Accordingly, we target growth of noninterest-bearing deposits. Although we cannot directly control the types of deposit 
instruments our customers choose, we can influence those choices with the interest rates and deposit specials we offer. We do not hold any 
brokered deposits, as defined for federal regulatory purposes, although we do hold QwikRate ® deposits which we obtain via the internet to 
address liquidity needs when rates on such deposits compare favorably with deposit rates in our markets. At March 31, 2015, we held $80.5 
million of QwikRate ® deposits, an increase from $52.7 million at December 31, 2014.  

The following table presents, by type, our funding sources, which consist of total average deposits and borrowed funds, as a percentage of total 
funds and the total cost of each funding source for the three ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:  
   

Capital Management . Our primary sources of capital include retained earnings, capital obtained through acquisitions and proceeds from the sale 
of our capital stock. We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve and the FDIC which specify 
capital tiers, including the following classifications:  
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   Percentage of Total           Cost of Funds        

   
Three months ended  

March 31,           
Three months ended  

March 31,        
   2015           2014           2015           2014        

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits     10    %        10    %       -    %        -    %  
Interest-bearing demand deposits     27             27            0.6             0.6       
Savings accounts     7             9            0.7             0.7       
Time deposits     43             46            1.0             1.0       
Short-term borrowings     7             2            0.2             0.1       
Long-term borrowed funds     6             6            0.8             1.0       
Total deposits and borrowed funds     100    %        100    %       3.3    %        3.4    %  

Capital Tiers     Tier 1 Leverage Ratio     
Common Equity Tier 1 

Capital Ratio     
Tier 1 Capital  

Ratio     Total Capital Ratio  

Well capitalized     5% or above    6.5% or above    8% or above    10% or above  
Adequately capitalized     4% or above     4.5% or above     6% or above    8% or above  
Undercapitalized     Less than 4%    Less than 4.5%    Less than 6%    Less than 8%  
Significantly undercapitalized     Less than 3%    Less than 3%    Less than 4%    Less than 6%  
Critically undercapitalized               2% or less       



   
   
The Company and the Bank each were in compliance with all regulatory capital requirements as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The 
Bank also was considered “well-capitalized” under the FDIC’s prompt corrective action regulations as of all of these dates. The following table 
presents the actual capital amounts and regulatory capital ratios for the Company and the Bank as of the dates presented (dollars in thousands):    
   

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions  

The Bank entered into forward starting interest rate swap contracts to manage exposure against the variability in the expected future cash flows 
(future interest payments) attributable to changes in the 1-month LIBOR associated with the forecasted issuances of 1- month fixed rate debt 
arising from a rollover strategy. The maximum length of time over which the Bank is currently hedging its exposure to the variability in future 
cash flows for forecasted transactions is five years. The total notional amount of the derivative contracts is $20.0 million.  

The Bank enters into loan commitments and standby letters of credit in the normal course of its business. Loan commitments are made to meet 
the financing needs of our customers, while standby letters of credit commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers when certain 
specified future events occur. The credit risks associated with loan commitments and standby letters of credit are essentially the same as those 
involved in making loans to our customers. Accordingly, our normal credit policies apply to these arrangements. Collateral (e.g., securities, 
receivables, inventory, equipment, etc.) is obtained based on management’s credit assessment of the customer.  
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   Actual        

Minimum Capital  
Requirement to be  
Well Capitalized     

   Amount        Ratio (1)        Amount        Ratio (1)     
         
March 31, 2015                                               
Investar Holding Corporation:                                               

Tier 1 leverage ratio  $ 105,847          12.25 %       -          -    
Common equity tier 1 risk-based capital ratio  $ 102,347          13.48 %       -          -    
Tier 1 capital ratio  $ 105,847          13.94 %       -          -    
Total capital ratio  $ 111,226          14.65 %       -          -    

Investar Bank:                                               
Tier 1 leverage ratio  $ 101,784          11.80 %    $ 43,119          5.00 % 
Common equity tier 1 risk-based capital ratio  $ 101,784          13.43 %    $ 49,258          6.50 % 
Tier 1 capital ratio  $ 101,784          13.43 %    $ 60,626          8.00 % 
Total capital ratio  $ 107,163          14.14 %    $ 75,782          10.00 % 

                                                
December 31, 2014                                               
Investar Holding Corporation:                                               

Tier 1 leverage ratio  $ 103,535          12.61 %       -          -    
Tier 1 capital ratio  $ 103,535          13.79 %       -          -    
Total capital ratio  $ 108,165          14.41 %       -          -    

Investar Bank:                                               
Tier 1 leverage ratio  $ 73,870          9.00 %    $ 41,026          5.00 % 
Tier 1 capital ratio  $ 73,870          9.86 %    $ 44,959          6.00 % 
Total capital ratio  $ 78,500          10.48 %    $ 74,931          10.00 % 
                                                

(1)       Beginning January 1, 2015, the capital ratios of the Company and Bank are calculated using the Basel III framework. Capital ratios for 
prior periods were calculated using the Basel I framework. The common equity tier 1 capital ratio is a new ratio introduced under the 
Basel III framework.     



   
   

Loan commitments and standby letters of credit do not necessarily represent future cash requirements, in that while the customer typically has 
the ability to draw upon these commitments at any time, these commitments often expire without being drawn upon in full or at all. Virtually all 
of our standby letters of credit expire within one year. Our unfunded loan commitments and standby letters of credit outstanding were as follows 
at the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):  
   

The Company closely monitors the amount of remaining future commitments to borrowers in light of prevailing economic conditions and adjusts 
these commitments as necessary. The Company will continue this process as new commitments are entered into or existing commitments are 
renewed.  

For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and for the year ended December 31, 2014, we engaged in no off-balance sheet transactions 
reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.  

Contractual Obligations  

There have been no material changes outside the ordinary course of business in the contractual obligations set forth in the table of contractual 
obligations as of December 31, 2014 contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
   
   
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk  

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk as of December 31, 2014 are set forth in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
filed with the SEC on March 31, 2015. There have been no material changes in the Company’s market risk since December 31, 2014. Please 
refer to the information in Item 2, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, under the heading 
“Risk Management-Interest Rate Risk” for additional information about the Company’s market risk.  

   
Item 4. Controls and Procedures  

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, the Company’s Principal Executive Officer 
and Principal Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) are effective for ensuring that information the Company is required to disclose in the reports 
that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time 
periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting during the fiscal quarter covered by this quarterly report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  
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   March 31, 2015        December 31, 2014     

                        
Commitments to extend credit:                       
Loan commitments  $ 121,289       $ 90,946    
Standby letters of credit     479          534    



   
   
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION  
   

Item 1A. Risk Factors  

There have been no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by Investar Holding 
Corporation (the “Company”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 31, 2015.  
   
   
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  

None.  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  

The following table provides the information with respect to purchases made by the Company of shares of its common stock during each of the 
months during the three month period ended March 31, 2015:  
   

The Company’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders may be limited on account of the junior subordinated debentures that the Company 
assumed in connection with its acquisition of First Community Bank, which are senior to shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company 
must make payments on the junior subordinated debentures before any dividends can be paid on its common stock.  

In addition, the Company’s status as a bank holding company affects its ability to pay dividends, in two ways:  

   
   

46  

Period     

(a) Total 
Number of  

Shares (or Units) 
Purchased (1)        

(b) Average 
Price  

Paid per Share   
(or  

Unit)        

(c ) Total Number  
of Shares (or Units)  
Purchased as Part  

of Publicly  
Announced Plans  
or Programs (2)        

(d) Maximum Number (or  
Approximate Dollar  
Value) of Shares (or  
Units) That May Be  

Purchased Under the  
Plans or Programs (2)     

January 1, 2015 to January 31, 2015       -      $ -         -         -    
February 1, 2015 to February 28, 2015       -         -         -         250,000    
March 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015       83         17.10         -         250,000    
        83      $ 17.10         -         250,000    

(1) 
 

Represents shares surrendered to cover the payroll taxes due upon the vesting of restricted stock.  
(2)  On February 19, 2015, the Company announced that its board of directors had authorized the repurchase of up to 250,000 shares of the 

Company’s common stock in open market transactions from time to time or through privately negotiated transactions in accordance with 
federal securities laws. No such purchases occurred in the first quarter of 2015.  

•  As a holding company with no material business activities, the Company’s ability to pay dividends is substantially dependent upon 
the ability of Investar Bank to transfer funds to the Company in the form of dividends, loans and advances. Investar Bank’s ability to 
pay dividends and make other distributions and payments is itself subject to various legal, regulatory and other restrictions.  

•  As a holding company of a bank, the Company’s payment of dividends must comply with the policies and enforcement powers of 
the Federal Reserve. Under Federal Reserve policies, in general a bank holding company should pay dividends only when (1) its net 
income available to shareholders over the last four quarters (net of dividends paid) has been sufficient to fully fund the dividends, 
(2) the prospective rate of earnings retention appears to be consistent with the capital needs and overall current and prospective 
financial condition of the bank holding company and its subsidiaries and (3) the bank holding company will continue to meet 
minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratios.  



   
   
Item 6. Exhibits  
   

   

The Company does not have any long-term debt instruments under which securities are authorized exceeding 10% of the total assets of the 
Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The Company will furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon its request, a 
copy of all long-term debt instruments.  
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Exhibit No.    Description of Exhibit  
         

    3.1     Restated Articles of Incorporation of Investar Holding Corporation (1 )  
      

    3.2     By-laws of Investar Holding Corporation, as amended (2 )  
      

    4.1     Specimen Common Stock Certificate ( 3 )  
      

  31.1     Certification of the Principal Executive Officer, as required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
      

  31.2     Certification of the Principal Financial Officer, as required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
      

  32.1     Certification of the Principal Executive Officer, as required pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
      

  32.2     Certification of the Principal Financial Officer, as required pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
      

101.INS     XBRL Instance Document  
      

101.SCH     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document  
      

101.CAL     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document  
      

101.LAB     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document  
      

101.PRE     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  
      

101.DEF     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document  

( 1 )    Filed as exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed with the SEC on May 16, 2014 and incorporated 
herein by reference.  

(2)    Filed as exhibit 3.2 to the Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed with the SEC on 
June 4, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.  

(3)    Filed as exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of the Company filed with the SEC on May 16, 2014 and incorporated 
herein by reference.  



   
   

SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.  
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     INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION  
         
Date: May 8, 2015    /s/ John J. D’Angelo   
     John J. D’Angelo  
     President and Chief Executive Officer  
     (Principal Executive Officer)  
        
Date: May 8, 2015    /s/ Christopher L. Hufft   
     Christopher L. Hufft  
     Chief Accounting Officer  
     (Principal Financial Officer)  



   
   

EXHIBIT INDEX  
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Exhibit No.    Description of Exhibit  
         

  31.1     Certification of the Principal Executive Officer, as required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
         

  31.2     Certification of the Principal Financial Officer, as required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
         

  32.1     Certification of the Principal Executive Officer, as required pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
         

  32.2     Certification of the Principal Financial Officer, as required pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  
         

101.INS     XBRL Instance Document  
         

101.SCH     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document  
         

101.CAL     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document  
         

101.LAB     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document  
         

101.PRE     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  
         

101.DEF     XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document  



   
Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, John J. D’Angelo, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015 of Investar Holding Corporation;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  

   

   

   

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

c)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

Date: May 8, 2015     /s/ John J. D’Angelo  
      John J. D’Angelo  
      President and Chief Executive Officer  
      (Principal Executive Officer)  



   
Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, Christopher L. Hufft, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015 of Investar Holding Corporation;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  

   

   

   

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

c)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

Date: May 8, 2015     /s/ Christopher L. Hufft  
      Christopher L. Hufft  
      Chief Accounting Officer  
      (Principal Financial Officer)  



   
Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Investar Holding Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended March 31, 2015 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John J. D’Angelo, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

   

   

   

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and  

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
the Company.  

Date: May 8, 2015     /s/ John J. D’Angelo  
      John J. D’Angelo  
      President and Chief Executive Officer  
      (Principal Executive Officer)  



Exhibit 32.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Investar Holding Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended March 31, 2015 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Christopher L. Hufft, Chief Accounting Officer of the 
Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

   

   

   

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and  

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
the Company.  

Date: May 8, 2015     /s/ Christopher L. Hufft   
      Christopher L. Hufft  
      Chief Accounting Officer  
      (Principal Financial Officer)  


